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Corporate Information
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae (Chairman)
Mr. Wong, John Ying Man

Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin

Mr. Mok, Kin Hing

Non-Executive Directors
Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang
Mr. Huang, Zhouchang
Ms. Li, Yinghong

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung

Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da

Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming

Alternate Directors
Mr. Xiong, Zhengfeng

(alternate to Mr. Huang, Zhouchang)
Mr. Zhang, Yuankun

(alternate to Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae)
Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit

(alternate to Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang)

PRINCIPAL BANKERS
The Bank of East Asia, Limited
Shanghai Commercial Bank Limited

SOLICITORS
Philip K.H. Wong, Kennedy Y.H. Wong & Co.

AUDITORS
Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Wong, Michael Sui Wah

REGISTERED OFFICE
Rooms 1801-1813, 18/Floor
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8 On Ping Street

Shatin, New Territories
Hong Kong

SHARE REGISTRARS AND TRANSFER OFFICE
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
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Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae, aged 74, is Chairman of
the Company. After obtaining a Bachelor of Engineering
Degree (Chemical Engineering) in Canada in 1959,
he spent three years as a lecturer at the Hong Kong
Technical College until 1964 when he founded the
Company.

Mr. Wong, John Ying Man, aged 45, son of Dr. Wong,
Philip Kin Hang, was appointed to the Board as an
Executive Director on 15 September 1997. He graduated
from the University of Manchester Institute of Science &
Technology in 1987 and joined the Company in the same
year. He worked as an engineer, project coordinator,
engineering manager and then general manager for
operations.

Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin, aged 44, son of Mr.
Wong, Wilson Kin Lae, was appointed to the Board
as a Non-Executive Director on 18 July 2001 and
re-designated as an Executive Director on 19 April
2002. He became a Deputy Executive Chairman on
19 April 2007. Mr. Wong holds a Bachelor’'s Degree
in Chemical Engineering and a Master Degree in
Economics. He is a U.S. Certified Public Accountant
(CPA), a Certified Management Accountant (CMA) and
is certified in financial management (CFM). He is an
independent non-executive director of Modern Beauty
Salon Holdings Limited (Stock code: 919) and China
Sonangol Resources Enterprise Limited (Stock code:
1229).

Mr. Mok, Kin Hing, aged 47, was Alternate Director to
Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae, Chairman until 1st July 2008
when he was appointed to the Board as an Executive
Director with effect from 1 July 2008. Mr. Mok joined the
Company as a production planning coordinator in 1990.
He was appointed as a production manager in 1993 and
general manager of Raymond (Panyu Nansha) Electrical
Appliances Development Co. Ltd. in 1996. Since 2005,
Mr. Mok has been appointed as a member of Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference in Guangzhou
City, Nansha District.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

RAEEREREEEAMN

Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang, GBS, Jpr, LLD, DH, aged
77, brother of Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae, has been a
Director of the Company since 1973. Dr. Wong is a
consultant of a Hong Kong firm of solicitors, a Notary
Public and a China Appointed Attesting Officer.

Mr. Huang, Zhouchang, aged 45, was appointed to the
Board as a Non-Executive Directors on 1 August 2002.
Mr. Huang graduated from Zhongshan University in
1987 and obtained a Master of Laws (LL.M) Degree in
1990 from China University of Political Science & Law.
Mr. Huang joined China North Industries Guangzhou
Corporation in 1990 and during his years with Norinco
— Guangzhou, he held the positions of departmental
manager, deputy general manager and general manager.
Mr. Huang left Norinco — Guangzhou Branch in 2002 to
take up work as the managing director of Silver City
International (Holdings) Ltd.

Ms. Li, Yinghong, aged 47, was appointed to the Board
as a Non-Executive Director of the Company with effect
from 4 July 2008. Ms. Li is an executive director of AKM
Industrial Co. Ltd. (Stock code: 8298). In July 1985, she
obtained her Bachelor’'s Degree in Corporate Finance
and Accounting from Jiangxi College of Finance. In May
2003, she obtained a Master Degree in International
Management from Australia National University. From
March 2001 to April 2003, she was a director of Norinco
International Cooperation Company Limited, a company
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange in China. In June
2003, Ms. Li joined Silver City International (Holdings)
Ltd. as a director, deputy general manager and financial
controller.

Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung, aged 67, was appointed
to the Board as an Independent Non-Executive Director in
1988. He is an entrepreneur with extensive international
experience in garment manufacturing and trading. He is
the founder of the Onwel Group of Companies in 1969
and has been holding the position of executive chairman
since 1982.
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Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da, aged 50, was appointed as
an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company
on 1994. He holds a Master's Degree in Business
Administration from the USA. He is the chairman and
managing director of Asialink Capital Limited. Prior to
that, he held senior positions with various international
financial institutions. Mr. Fan is an independent non-
executive director of Uni-President China Holdings
Limited (Stock code: 220), Chinney Alliance Group
Limited (Stock code: 385), Citic Resources Holdings
Limited (Stock code: 1205), Renhe Commercial Holdings
Company Limited (Stock code: 1387) and Hong Kong
Resources Holdings Company Limited (Stock code:
2882), all listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.

Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming, aged 73, was appointed to the Board
as an Independent Non-Executive Director on 2 July
2004. Currently, Mr. Ng is a non-executive director of
Dah Sing Financial Holdings Ltd. He has over 40 years
of experience in hire purchase and leasing finance.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

| am pleased to present the Group’s annual results for
the year ended 31 December 2009.

For the year end 31 December, 2009, the Group had
a net profit of HK$7,960,264, compared with a net
loss of HK$20,290,259 a year ago. Operating profit
before changes in working capital was positive, and
cash generated from operations was approximately
HK$4,271,283. Our cash and cash equivalents
balance at the end of 2009 was HK$175,402,884 (with
HK$19,693,244 dividend paid out during the year)
compared with HK$215,925,630 at the beginning of the
year. The positive operating cash flow and substantial
cash balance allow the Group to expand our business as
well as to continue our dividend payout policy.

Last year the Group had commenced the liquidation
of our HK-based holding company of investment in the
paper business, and hence the Group will no longer be
liable to further losses in the cigarette paper business.
The Group expects the process of liquidation to be
completed during the second half of 2010.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2009, the
Group’s consolidated turnover was HK$817,000,353
compared with HK$724,191,127 in the previous year,
representing an increase of 12.8% in turnover.

The Group’s net profit was HK$7,960,264, representing
earnings per share of 2.02 HK cents (our net loss in
2008 was HK$20,290,259, with loss per share of 5.15
HK cents).
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES
AND COMMITMENT

To uphold the Group’s vision and endeavor to groom
young talents for the manufacturing industry, Raymond
Industrial Limited and the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University have participated in the “Teaching Company
Scheme” under the University—Industry Collaboration
Programme of the Innovation and Technology Fund
(“ITF”). New fresh graduates qualified for this program
will be employed and worked at our manufacturing
sites while conducting research projects culminating
in award of their Master's degrees. All these efforts
aim at providing our next generation of engineering
professionals with a better understanding, incentives,
encouragement and the necessary foundation to build
a successful professional career in the manufacturing
industry.

Furthermore, members of our top management gave
guest lectures at the MBA classes at Dartmouth
University in the U.S.A., Fudan University in Shanghai
and the Hong Kong Polytechnic University to groom and
recruit young talents.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend the

Board’s appreciation to all our staff for their hard work
and dedication throughout the year.

Wong, Wilson Kin Lae
Chairman

Hong Kong, 16 April 2010

Chairman’s Statement
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEEFNWR DN

FINANCIAL POSITION

The liquidity position of the Group remains sound.
Its current ratio was 3.43 as of 31 December 2009,
compared with 4.44 as of 31 December 2008.

During the year, the Group’s Accounts Receivables
turnover stood at 54 days in year 2009, compared with
35 days of the previous year because of request from
a few major customers to extend payment terms. The
inventory turnover increased from 47 days in year 2008
to 48 days in year 2009.

Bank balances and cash were HK$175,402,884 as of 31
December 2009 (2008: HK$215,925,630), representing
a decrease of HK$40,522,746 over that of the previous
year, mainly due to dividends paid out during the year.

There are no bank borrowings as of 31 December 2009,
and the Group’s debt to equity ratio is 29% as of 31
December 2009 (2008: 22%).

The Group had no contingent liabilities as of 31
December 2009 (2008: Nil).

As of 31 December 2009, the Group had commitments
for capital contribution to subsidiaries (authorised
but not contracted for) of HK$46,500,000 (2008:
HK$46,800,000).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the year, the share capital structure of the
Company has not been changed with details shown in
note 24 to the financial statements.

DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors recommended the payment of a
final dividend of 4 HK cents, making a total payout of 4
HK cents per share for 2009 (2008: total of 10 HK cents
per share), which is subject to shareholders’ approval at
the upcoming annual general meeting. The total amount
of dividend appropriated, based on the number of shares
in issue, is HK$15,767,395 (2008: HK$39,386,488).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The book of transfers and register of member will be
closed from 24 May 2010 to 1 June 2010, both days
inclusive during which period no transfer of shares will
be registered. In order to qualify for the final dividend,
lodging of all transfers accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must not be later than 4:30 p.m. on
20 May 2010 with the Company’s share registrars,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited,
at Rooms 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong. The
final dividend is payable on or about 10 June 2010
to members whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on 1 June 2010.

CHARGES ON ASSETS

The Group has no charges on assets as of 31 December
2009 and 31 December 2008.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

The Group completed shifting its core business from
manufacturing of lower margin small appliances to
higher margin environmental products. During 2009,
the Group also focused on and developed more new
grooming products. We expect most of these new
products will be launched in 2010 and the first half of
2011, with significant contribution to be made to the
Group’s turnover and profit. At the same time, we have
adopted a target costing strategy for all new products.
We have established and deployed enterprise and
business level strategy; established a technology plan
with focus on core competencies; and selected target
customers and identified their quality, cost and delivery
requirement. Based on the business and technology
strategies, we have defined new product lines, market
size and share objectives, as well as developed a profit
plan for the new products portfolio, thus migrating from
an updated cost-plus pricing model to a market-based
pricing model to capture more market shares with major
customers.

BEEEFNWR DN
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEEFNWR DN

At the same time, we have continued our business
process improvement programs to ensure success by
building leadership, understanding and commitment,
as well as developing a comprehensive understanding
of current business processes to improve efficiency,
effectiveness and adaptability. We have developed in-
process measurements and targets and implemented a
continuous improvement process.

We will continue to follow our medium term strategic goal
to become a leader in the environmental and grooming
product categories while developing our competence
in other product categories, such as the bar equipment
category, a revolutionary departure from traditional
electrical appliances. In 2009, we have successfully
launched a few innovative and higher margin new
products, and we will continue to launch new products
in 2010 and beyond for these product categories.

To fulfill our goal to be a leader in our area of expertise
and to execute our strategic plans successfully, our
management has invested over HK$20,000,000 in new
injection moulding equipments in 2009. We expect to
invest in more new machineries and technologies to
further upgrade our manufacturing capabilities in 2010.

STAFF

The Group currently employs approximately 50 Hong
Kong staff members and operates the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme and defined contribution pension
scheme. Our factory in the Mainland China employs
about 250 staff members, and workers employed directly
or indirectly varied from 3,000 to 4,000 persons during
the year. Remuneration is determined by reference to
their qualifications, experience and performance.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Most of the Group’s transactions were conducted in the
United States dollars, Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi.
The Group does not foresee any substantial exposure
to foreign currency fluctuations and thus use of financial
instruments for exchange rate hedging purpose is not
considered.
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The Board of Directors has the pleasure in submitting
their annual report together with the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31December 2009.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

Raymond Industrial Limited (the “Company”) is a
company incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong and
has its registered office and principal place of business
at Rooms 1801-1813, 18th Floor, Grandtech Centre, 8
On Ping Street, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are the sale of
electrical home appliances. The principal activities and
other particulars of the subsidiaries are set out in note
15 to the financial statements.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical
locations of the operations of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) during the financial year are
set out in note 12 to the financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of sales and purchases attributable to
the Group’s major customers and suppliers during the
financial year are as follows:

Report of the Directors
EEERE

ZEEEENELEHET2009F12A31H IEFE 2 FR LK
BRIIE®RE -
TELEME
MEBEABRAR ([ARQAFA]) 2—HEEFMETA
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85%181€1801-1813% «
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ARBZ T EEEEHERAER - TEEBLENBEA
A HTE R BTSRRI 5E15 ©

ApeREMBAR ([AEE]) 2T EXHRMEER
DITEN I MK 12

FEEFREER

AEBEzTZHERMELHASBEFE ZRBELHE
ERzBOLMT

Percentage of
The Group’s total

rEEZEHESE
Sales Purchases
HERE e
The largest customer BARFP 40%
Five largest customers in aggregate AREPF&E 86%
The largest supplier BAHIER 29%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate hAAREEEEET 40%

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder
of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors
owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital)
had any interest in these major customers and suppliers
during the year.

RERTAEHE  SEARRES REZBEA LR
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Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2009 and the state of the Company’s and the Group’s
affairs as at that date are set out in the financial
statements on pages 42 to 126.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Profit attributable to shareholders, before dividends, of
HK$7,960,264 (2008: loss of HK$20,290,259) have been
transferred to reserves.

An interim dividend was unpaid on 2009 (2008: 5 HK
cents per share). The Directors recommend the payment
of a final dividend of 4 HK cents per share (2008: 5
HK cent per share) in respect of the year ended 31
December 2009.

DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to HK$10,037 (2008: HK$113,350).

FIXED ASSETS

Details of the movements in fixed assets are set out in
note 13 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements in share capital of the Company

during the year are set out in note 24(c) to the financial
statements.

12 RAYMOND Industrial Ltd. 7|REZEHBRAF]

B R #R 3k
KREEEHZ2009F12A31B IEFE 2 EE

NS /N
RAEENZ A ZANBENIEREFI2EEL1268 -

HEREREE
R R E(E R A (RETIEE) B 17,960,264 7T (20084 : /&5
1B78120,290,2597T) O E B -

#H 220094128310 )R AR P HMK S (20084 :
REEEESIL) - EE IR EHIRE KPR E FIBE4L
(20084 : FREBHESL) -

B

NEBEAFEIEHZZZREMBRE £E10,0377T
(20084 : B#113,3507T) °

BE&E

AARZ B LR EHN IS RAMN T3 -

[N

RRABZ BARBHISEHN I B HRKMTE24(c) °



DIRECTORS

The Directors during the financial year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae (Chairman)
Mr. Wong, John Ying Man

Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin

Mr. Mok, Kin Hing

Non-Executive Directors:
Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang
Mr. Huang, Zhouchang

Ms. Li, Yinghong

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung

Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da

Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming

Alternate Directors:
Mr. Xiong, Zhengfeng

(alternate to Mr. Huang, Zhouchang)
Mr. Zhang, Yuankun

(alternate to Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae)
Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit

(alternate to Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang)

In accordance with article 112 of the Company’s Articles
of Association, Mr. Mok, Kin Hing; Ms. Li, Yinghong and
Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming will retire from the board by rotation
at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being
eligible, have offered themselves for re-election.
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company or its subsidiaries which
is not terminable within one year without payment of
compensation other than statutory compensation.

The Non-Executive Directors do not have specific terms
of appointment but are subject to retirement by rotation
in accordance with the Articles of Association of the
Company.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Except for the transactions disclosed in note 28 to
the financial statements, no contract of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party, and in which a
Director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or
at any time during the year.
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND ESZSRZAQRZRMKRBER GRS
UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 December 2009, the interests of the Directors 2009 12H31H KREEN AL T - B AT R AN
in the shares of the Company, its subsidiaries and HtAE (& BEFRBEEG ([FHEHN]D)) Z2B&kH
other associated corporations (within the meaning of 1BRAMR(D © RIEA D AR EFHEHI FE35215 MR B 2 &R
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) as  MATEIRCEE @ SIRBEA R BBEERMZEROT ¢
recorded in the register maintained by the Company

under Section 352 of the SFO or as notified to the

Company are as follows:

(i) Interests in issued shares (i) BITROER
Number of shares
kogg
% of total
issued
Personal Family Corporate Share shares
interests interests interests options Total SRR
AR FEER EEER BhRE At ROESE
(Note 1) (Note 6)
(it1) (it6)
Executive Directors HiTEE
Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae sRflEE 4,576,008 150,000 91,407,597 6,801,576 102,935,181 26.11%
(Note 2) (Note 3)
(i2) (i£3)
Mr. Wong, John Ying Man ERGEE 7,668,448 - - 6,800,000 14,468,448 3.67%
Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin ENELE 6,417,972 - - 6,800,000 13,217,972 3.35%
Mr. Mok, Kin Hing BRELE - - - 6,800,000 6,800,000 1.73%
Non-Executive Directors HHTEE
Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang EGTEL - 421,000 35,755,688 3,743,000 39,919,688 10.13%
(Note 4) (Note 5)
(i14) (#5)
Mr. Huang, Zhouchang FHARE 600,000 - - 3,250,000 3,850,000 0.98%
Ms. Li, Yinghong FRALT - - - 3,250,000 3,250,000 0.82%
Independent Non-Executive BUHHTEE
Directors
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung DRERE 3,694,300 - - 693,800 4,388,100 1.11%
Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da BEERE 644,300 - - 693,800 1,338,100 0.34%
Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming b b 330,000 - - 693,800 1,023,800 0.26%
Alternate Directors HEZE
Mr. Xiong, Zhengfeng BEIPIE S - - - 750,000 750,000 0.19%
Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit BRELE - - - 750,000 750,000 0.19%
Mr. Zhang, Yuankun RLHEE - - - 1,830,000 1,830,000 0.46%
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Report of the Directors
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

(i) Interests in issued shares (Continued)
Notes:
(1) The shares are registered under the names of the

Directors who are the beneficial shareholders.

(2) Ms. Sun, Amelia Kwing Hai, spouse of Mr. Wong, Wilson
Kin Lae, is the beneficial shareholder.

(3) Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae is the beneficial shareholders
of 91.7% of the issued share capital of Broadbridge
Enterprises Limited and Diamond-Harvest Limited, which
owned 13,525,837 and 77,881,760 shares respectively
in the Company at 31 December 2009.

(4) Mrs. Wong Cheng, Gertrude Kwok Cheung, spouse of Dr.
Wong, Philip Kin Hang, is the beneficial shareholder.

(5) Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang is the beneficial shareholder
of 50% of the issued capital of Ho Kit Man Inc. and
Sunnydale Enterprises Holdings Ltd., which owned
35,669,688 and 86,000 shares in the Company at 31
December 2009, respectively.

(6) Share options are granted to the Directors under the
Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme”) approved by the
shareholders at an extraordinary general meeting on 6
June 2008. Details of which were set out in the section
“SHARE OPTION SCHEME” below.

All the interests disclosed under this section represent
long positions in the shares of the Company.

(ii) Interests in underlying shares

The Directors of the Company have been granted
options under the Company’s share option scheme,
details of which are set out in the section “SHARE
OPTION SCHEME” below.

Apart from the foregoing, none of the Directors of the
Company or any of their spouses or children under
eighteen years of age has interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company, or any of its holding Company, subsidiaries
or other associated corporations, as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 352 of the
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Companies.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Share options are granted to directors, employees and
other eligible participants specified under the Share
Option Scheme (the “Scheme”) approved by shareholders
of the Company at an extraordinary general meeting on
6 June 2003. Details of the Scheme are as follows:

Purpose To give eligible participants incentives or
rewards for their contribution or potential
contribution to the Group

Participants (i) Directors, employees of any member
of the Group or any controlling
shareholder of the Company
(“Controlling Shareholder”) or any
company controlled by a Controlling
Shareholder,

(i) Holder of any securities issued
by any member of the Group or
any Controlling Shareholder of the
Company or any company controlled
by a Controlling Shareholder,

(iiiy  (a) any business or joint venture
partner, contractor, agent or
representative of,

(b) any supplier of goods or
services to, or

(c) any customer or distributor of
goods or services of,

Any member of the Group or
any Controlling Shareholder
or a company controlled by a
Controlling Shareholder;

And for the purpose of the
Scheme, shall include any
company controlled by one or
more persons belonging to any of
the above classes of persons
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) BIRRETE ()
Total number of 78,707,976 ordinary shares and mJ{#t3%/7 7 &i@& 78,707,976k LMk - (5B BT
ordinary shares 19.97% of the issued share capital BEE R AAFTR  K19.97%
available for < BEMEE T
issue and the BARZEDLL
percentage

of the issued
share capital
that it represents
as at the date

of the annual

report
Maximum 1% of the aggregate number of FELmEFAZHE (EEM1210 [ M2 EETEEMN
entitlement of ordinary shares in issue in any A5 #E R VER ISR - NEBBAATE R
each participant 12-month period up to the date of TEBAEIER 2 1%
grant
Period within Within a maximum period of 10 [ERIEVERE  BRETAEN Y BT - EHERE
which the years commencing from the date I8 5~ HARR Z AT HAR Al #B3B104E
securities must  of grant of such options
be taken up
under an option
Minimum period Not applicable 1T{E BB R A TiEH
for which an /LA HIR
option must be
held before
it can be
exercised

Amount payable  HK$1.00 for each lot of share iz#yBpsiEns/A SRR 2 BIREAEET
on acceptance  options granted Ytz 458
of the option

Period within 21 days from the date of the offer 4N B RS A BHEH21HR
which payments R ERA

must be made
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Basis of
determining the
exercise price

The higher of (i) the closing price
of the shares on the offer date or
(ii) the average closing price of
the shares for the 5 trading days
immediately preceding the offer
of the option, provided that the
exercise price is not less than the
nominal value of the share

The Scheme remains in force until
5 June 2013 unless otherwise
terminated under terms of the
Scheme

The remaining life
of the Scheme

At 31 December 2009, the Directors, employees and
other participants had the following interests in options
to subscribe for shares of the Company (market value
per share at 31 December 2009 was HK$0.74) granted
for a consideration of HK$1 for each lot of options
granted under the Scheme. The options are unlisted.
Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for
one ordinary share of HK$0.50 each of the Company.
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Report of the Directors
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) BRRESTE (&)
No. of options uaiel
: value
RREHE per share
Held at Granted  Cancelled Exercised Outstanding at date
1 January during during during at the Period during of grant
2009 the year the year the year year end which options Exercise of options*
#2009 RER RER RER RER are exercisable price  REBRE
1818 Rtz it A E¥Ez  ERTEz Dategranted BRETTE pershare REAHZ
2t BREHE BRESE BRERE BREYE HLERE ZHE BROEE BRHE
HK$ HK$
BT B
Directors
3
Executive Directors:
HiTEE -
Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae 3,800,088 - - - 3,800,088 30 June 2008 30 June 2008 to 0.910 0.844
EER Yk 2008464308 29 June 2018
200868300 %
201856729A
- 3,001,488 - - 3,001,488 6 October 2009 6 October 2009 to 0.630 0.610
2009510764 5 October 2019
2009F10A6HZ
201910458
Mr. Wong, John Ying Man 3,800,000 - - - 3,800,000 30 June 2008 30 June 2008 to 0.910 0.844
BRHEE 200856A308 29 June 2018
2008F6A308%
2018467298
- 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000 6 October 2009 6 October 2009 to 0.630 0.610
2009510764 5 October 2019
2009F10A6HZ
20195107458
Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin 3,800,000 - - - 3,800,000 30 June 2008 30 June 2008 to 0.910 0.844
BEXBEEE 2008464307 29 June 2018
2008568300 %
2018%56A297
- 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000 6 October 2009 6 October 2009 to 0.630 0.610
200910468 5 October 2019
2009F10A6HZ
20195107450
Mr. Mok, Kin Hing 3,800,000 - - - 3,800,000 30 June 2008 30 June 2008 to 0.910 0.844
RSt 2008467308 29 June 2018
2008464300 %
2018%6A297
- 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000 6 October 2009 6 October 2009 to 0.630 0.610
2009510A6H 5 October 2019
2009F10A6HZ
2019410758
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) BRESE (8)
No. of options et
g value
RREHRE per share
Held at Granted  Cancelled Exercised Outstanding at date
1 January during during during at the Period during of grant
2009 the year the year the year year end which options Exercise of options*
120095 RER RER RER RER are exercisable price  MERE
1A1A Rz b E¥z  ERTE2 Dategranted BRETTE per share REAMZ
&% BREHE  BREHE BREE BREBE RLAH 288 BRAEE BRHE
HKS$ HK$
BT AT
Non-Executive Directors:
FHTEE
Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang 493,000 - - - 493,000 21 June 2005 21 June 2005 to 2.425 1.736
BRTET 200556A218 5 June 2013
200566 A21A%
20135650
1,750,000 - - - 1,750,000 30 June 2008 30 June 2008 to 0.910 0.844
200856 730H 29 June 2018
200866 A30H %
201856 /29A
- 1,500,000 - - 1,500,000 6 October 2009 6 October 2009 to 0.630 0.610
2009510764 5 October 2019
2009510A68 %
2019510458
Mr. Huang, Zhouchang 1,750,000 - - - 1,750,000 30 June 2008 30 June 2008 to 0.910 0.844
BEEAE 200856A308 29 June 2018
2008564300 %
2018564290
- 1,500,000 - - 1,500,000 6 October 2009 6 October 2009 to 0.630 0.610
2009410764 5 October 2019
200951060 Z
2019510 A5H
Ms. Li, Yinghong 1,750,000 - - - 1,750,000 30 June 2008 30 June 2008 to 0.910 0.844
S e 2008567308 29 June 2018
2008567300 %
2018%6A29H
- 1,500,000 - - 1,500,000 6 October 2009 6 October 2009 to 0.630 0.610
200910768 5 October 2019
2009F10A6HZ
2019610 A5H
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) EREE (&)
No. of options Yaet
: value
RREHR per share
Held at Granted  Cancelled Exercised Outstanding at date
1 January during during during at the Period during of grant
2009 the year the year the year year end which options Exercise of options*
120095 RER RER RER RER are exercisable price  MERE
1A1A Rz b E¥z  ERTE2 Dategranted BRETTE per share REAMZ
&% BREHE  BREHE BREE BREBE RLAH 288 BRAEE BRHE
HKS$ HK$
B by
Independent Non-Executive
Directors:
BUFHTEE -
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung 393,800 - - - 393,800 30 June 2008 30 June 2008 to 0.910 0.844
ARERE 2008F6A308 29 June 2018
200856 H30F
201856 729A
- 300,000 - - 300,000 6 October 2009 6 October 2009 to 0.630 0.610
2009510764 5 October 2019
200910468 %
2019%10A58
Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da 393,800 - - - 393,800 30 June 2008 30 June 2008 to 0.910 0.844
BLERE 200856 A30A 29 June 2018
200856 H30H %
2018567297
- 300,000 - - 300,000 6 October 2009 6 October 2009 to 0.630 0.610
2009410468 5 October 2019
2009510A6HZ
2019510458
Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming 393,800 - - - 393,800 30 June 2008 30 June 2008 to 0.910 0.844
[LRELEE 2008567308 29 June 2018
20085630 %
201856 729A
- 300,000 - - 300,000 6 October 2009 6 October 2009 to 0.630 0.610
2009610 A6H 5 October 2019
2009F10A6HZ
2019610454
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) BRESE (8)
No. of options et
g value
RREHRE per share
Held at Granted  Cancelled Exercised Outstanding at date
1 January during during during at the Period during of grant
2009 the year the year the year year end which options Exercise of options*
120095 RER RER RER RER are exercisable price  MERE
1A1A Rz b E¥z  ERTE2 Dategranted BRETTE per share REAMZ
&8 BRERE  BREHE BRERE  BRERE RAEH 25 BRHE SRAE
HKS$ HK$
BT AT
Alternate Directors:
REZ:
Mr. Xiong, Zhengfeng 450,000 - - - 450,000 30 June 2008  30June 2008 to 0.910 0.844
FREBRE 200864308 29 June 2018
20085630 %
201856 129A
- 300,000 - - 300,000 6 October 2009 6 October 2009 to 0.630 0.610
2009510764 5 October 2019
2009510A68%
2019610458
Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit 450,000 - - - 450,000 30 June 2008 30 June 2008 to 0.910 0.844
BHERE 200856 430H 29 June 2018
2008564300 %
201856 429H
- 300,000 - - 300,000 6 October 2009 6 October 2009 to 0.630 0.610
200941076H 5 October 2019
2009510760
2019510454
Mr. Zhang, Yuankun 930,000 - - - 930,000 30 June 2008 30 June 2008 to 0.910 0.844
RTEEE 200856 730A 29 June 2018
20086730 %
2018%£6/129H
- 900,000 - - 900,000 6 October 2009 6 October 2009 to 0.630 0.610
2009510468 5 October 2019
2009F107A6RE
2019%10A5H
Employees (Note 1) 552,000 - - - 552,000 21 June 2005 21 June 2005 to 2.425 1.736
B&(:71) 2005668218 5June 2013
200556A21H%
201356750
10,180,000 - (50,000) - 10,130,000 30 June 2008 30 June 2008 to 0.910 0.844
200856 430H 29 June 2018
200856 H30F
201856 29A
- 16,085,000 (100,000) (20,0000 15,965,000 6 October 2009 6 October 2009 to 0.630 0.610
2009510464 5 October 2019
2009510468 %
2019510 A5H
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) BRESE (@)
No. of options Yaet
f value
REEEA per share
Held at Granted  Cancelled Exercised Outstanding at date
1 January during during during at the Period during of grant
2009 the year the year the year year end which options Exercise of options*
120095 RER RER RER RER are exercisable price  MERE
1A1A Rz b E¥z  ERTE2 Dategranted BRETTE per share REAMZ
&% BREHE  BREHE BREE BREBE RLAH 288 BRAEE BRHE
HK$ HK$
BT AT
Other eligible persons 170,000 - - - 170,000 21 June 2005 21 June 2005 to 2.425 1.736
RftadgAL 200566f218 5 June 2013
2005562102
20135650
5,695,000 - (760,000) - 4,935,000 30 June 2008 30 June 2008 to 0.910 0.844
200856 430A 29 June 2018
200856430 %
2018%629H
- 4,400,000 - (300,000) 4,100,000 6 October 2009 6 October 2009 to 0.630 0.610
2009510764 5 October 2019
2009510A68 %
2019510458
40,551,488 39,386,488 (910,000) (320,000) 78,707,976
Notes: Htat -

(1) Subsequent to 31 December 2009, 300,000 shares
options, which had been granted to employees of the
Group were cancelled as a result of termination of
employment or cessation of services rendered to the
Group.

The options granted to the Directors are registered under the
names of the Directors who are also the beneficial owners.

*  being the weighted average closing price of the Company’s
ordinary shares immediately before the dates on which the
options were granted or exercised, as applicable.

Information on the accounting policy for share options granted
and the weighted average value per option is provided in note
2(i)(ii) and note 24 to the financial statements respectively.

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year was the
Company, or any of its holding company, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the directors
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body
corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

According to the register of substantial shareholders
maintained under section 336 of the SFO as at 31
December 2009, the Company had been notified of the
following substantial shareholders’ interests being 5% or
more of the Company’s ordinary shares in issue. These
interests are in addition to those disclosed above in
relation to the Directors:

Report of the Directors
EEERE

FERRRAQR 2RO KAERERG 2 s

B EalE =2 BRI 0 R2009F12A318 @ IRIEE
A&7 5533615 1M &% ﬁza—agﬂx%zﬁaﬂﬁ KAREET
DB RN T BEITIARS%E A FAERS 2B -

Number of shares

RoEE
% of total
issued
Registered Corporate Family Total shares
shareholders interests interest B EER BERT
BERTRR TEER FEEE ROBEYE BHBESE
Substantial shareholders FERE
Ms. Sun, Amelia Kwing Hai IfifELL 150,000 91,407,597 11,377,584 102,935,181 26.11%
(Note 2) (Note 1)
(it2) (i#1)
Diamond-Harvest Limited Diamond-Harvest Limited 77,881,760 - - 77,881,760 19.76%
(Note 3)
(#3)
Silver Talent Development BIBEEBRAA - 53,080,800 - 53,080,800 13.47%
Limited
Mrs. Wong Cheng, BB+ 421,000 35,755,688 3,743,000 39,919,688 10.13%
Gertrude Kwok Cheng (Note 4)
(i#4)
Ho Kit Man Inc. Ho Kit Man Inc. 35,669,688 - - 35,669,688 9.05%
(Note 5)
(i5)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
(Continued)

Notes:

(1) These shares were held by Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae,
spouse of Ms. Sun, Amelia Kwing Hai, of which details
are set out in the “Directors’ interests in shares and
underlying shares” section above.

(2) These shares were held through Broadbridge Enterprises
Limited and Diamond-Harvest Limited, companies
beneficially owned by Ms. Sun, Amelia Kwing Hai and
her spouse, Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae.

(3) These shares were held through Diamond-Harvest
Limited, a company controlled by Ms. Sun, Amelia
Kwing Hai and Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae.

(4) These shares were held by Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang,
spouse of Mrs. Wong Cheng, Gertude Kwok Cheung,
of which details are set out in the “Directors’ interest in
shares and underlying shares” section above.

(5) These shares were held through Ho Kit Man Inc., a
company controlled by Mrs. Wong Cheng, Gertude
Kwok Cheung and Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang.

All the interests disclosed under this section represent
long positions in the shares of the Company.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors of
the Company, as at the date of this annual report, the
Company has maintained the prescribed public float
under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”).

FIVE YEAR SUMMARY
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities

of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on
pages 127 and 128 of the annual report.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association and there was no
restriction against such rights under the laws of Hong
Kong, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
shares during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No substantial contracts concerning the management
and administration of the whole or any substantial part
of the business of the Group were entered into or existed
during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Significant related party transactions entered into by
the Group during the year ended 31 December 2009,
which do not constitute connected transactions under the
Listing Rules, are disclosed in note 28 to the financial
statements.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group operates two defined benefit retirement
schemes which cover all of the Group’s employees,
and a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme. Particulars of
these retirement schemes are set out in note 21 to the
financial statements.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the Independent
Non-Executive Directors an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and considers all the Independent Non-Executive
Directors to be independent.
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Report of the Directors
EEEHRSE

AUDITORS ZEED

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited will retire and, being &BRESAIEHAARARTRER  BRTESRE
eligible, offer themselves for reappointment. A resolution — F23E(T - BREEBRXESHAMEFAMER A B AR A%
for the re-appointment of Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited B 2 AR R B EXEAFRITZRERFAE -

as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the

forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the board REEG®

Wong, Wilson Kin Lae e

Chairman BEA

Hong Kong, 16 April 2010 A - 2010F4A16H
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company puts great emphasis on corporate
governance by reviewing and strengthening corporate
governance measures from time to time. The board
of directors (the “Board”) believes that shareholders
can derive maximum benefits from good corporate
governance.

Throughout the year, the Company was in compliance
with the Code of Corporate Governance Practices
(the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of The
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”),
save for a deviation from code provision A.4.1 of the
CG Code in respect of the service term of non-executive
directors.

Under code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, non-
executive directors (including independent non-executive
directors) should be appointed for a specific term and
subject to re-election.

None of the existing non-executive directors of
the Company is appointed for a specific term. This
constitutes a deviation from code provision A.4.1 of
the CG Code. However, all non-executive directors
are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
at the annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.
The Company has also received the annual confirmation
of independence from each independent non-executive
director and has grounds to believe that independent
non-executive director continues to be independent of
the Company. As such, the Company considers that
sufficient measures have been taken to ensure that the
Company’s corporate governance practices are no less
exacting than those in the CG Code.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out
in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”)
as the code of conduct for securities transactions by
directors and has adopted written guidelines no less
exacting than the Model Code for application to senior
management and designated people who might have
access to price sensitive information of the Group.
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TRERBHRE

Having made specific enquiries of the directors, all
directors confirm that they had complied with the Model
Code for the year ended 31 December 2009.

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Company’s corporate governance structure includes
the Board and three committees under the Board, namely
audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee. The Board stipulates the terms of reference
of all committees in writing and specifies clearly the
power and responsibilities of the committees.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Comprising four executive directors, three non-executive
directors, and three independent non-executive
directors (and three alternate directors), the Board
has an appropriate composition of directors. The non-
executive directors are each appointed for an unspecified
term. Please refer to page 13 of this annual report for
composition of the Board.

All independent non-executive directors of the Company
have complied with the requirements of the Listing
Rules and have submitted to the Company annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Board has assessed their
independence and confirms that all independent non-
executive directors are independent parties as defined
in the Listing Rules. Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung was
appointed on 16 March 1988, Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da
was appointed on 12 December 1994 and Mr. Ng Yiu
Ming was appointed on 2 July 2004. The appointment
of directors is not fixed for a specified term, but at
every annual general meeting, they are subject to the
retirement and re-election requirements pursuant to the
Articles of Association of the Company.
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The family
summarized as follows:

relationship among the directors is

Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae, Chairman and Dr. Wong,
Philip Kin Hang are brothers.

Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae is the father of Mr. Wong,
Raymond Man Hin and uncle of Mr. Wong, John Ying
Man and Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit.

Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang is the father of Mr. Wong,
John Ying Man and Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit and uncle
of Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin.

Mr. Wong, John Ying Man and Mr. Wong, David Ying
Kit are brothers and they are cousins of Mr. Wong,
Raymond Man Hin.

The directors have conducted a review of the
effectiveness of the system of internal control of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

The Board convenes at least two regular meetings each
year (approximately each six months), and will convene
further meetings when necessary. When a regular Board
meeting is convened, the Board documents will be sent
to the directors for review before the meeting pursuant
to the Listing Rules and the CG Code so that the
directors can keep abreast of the information to perform
their duties and responsibilities. The Board convened 7
meetings in 2009.
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TRERBHRE

The attendance of directors is as follows:

EEHFEBERAOT

Attendance

H

No. of meetings attended/
No. of meetings held

during term of service Attendance
Director Name HESBRE Rate
E=E8 EHRERRE HE =R
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae (Chairman) BEALAE (FE) 7/7 100%
Mr. Wong, John Ying Man BRI E 5/7 71%
Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin EXRLE 7/7 100%
Mr. Mok, Kin Hing EfREiE 7/7 100%
Non-Executive Directors HBITEE
Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang s FEL 717 100%
Mr. Huang, Zhouchang EHELE 6/7 86%
Ms Li, Yinghong THAZ T 4/7 57%
Independent Non-Executive Directors BV I #HTEE
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung RRUE & 7/7 100%
Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da B ESE A 717 100%
Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming HIBRA S 717 100%

The remuneration of directors is determined with
reference to their functions and responsibilities in the
Company, the performance of the Company and the
current market conditions. Director is not allowed to
participate in determining his own remuneration. The
remuneration received by directors from the Company
during the year is set out in Note 8 of the financial
statement. The Board has set up an independent
professional consulting procedure and upon reasonable
request, directors are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company’s expenses.
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Corporate Governance Report

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee comprises three independent non-
executive directors and one non-executive director with
extensive experience in accounting or legal matters. The
audit committee was established with specific written
terms of reference, mainly responsible for reviewing the
financial statements and annual and half-yearly reports
and accounts of the Company, submitting relevant
reports and recommendations to the Board, reviewing
the Company’s financial controls, internal control and risk
management systems and making recommendations on
the appointment and remuneration of the auditors of the
Company and any matters related to the termination of
appointment. Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung is chairman
of the audit committee and is responsible for reporting
the results and recommendations of the audit committee
to the Board after each meeting.

In 2009, the audit committee convened 2 meetings.
Members of the audit committee and their attendance
are as follows:

TERERBHRE

EREES

BERREQH3BBIUNFNTESTMIAIFNTESTMEN
ERHNEAETHELEERR - ERRB SO IERSE
EXrZ28EZMARRANMBHRRNRFERSFLFRE R
RE REFSRIMERSLEBER EHARRZ
PARGEEHE - MERESE M AR B IR R A R pL AN X B Az BB Y
RE - FHREAERIZEABEERDER - REUH
RERBEVZEENER  AENBREBRRANEFTSR
TERZEENERERIEBER

20094 - ExZE g B2k g®E  NEHFEBE LN
N

Attendance

i

No. of meetings attended/
No. of meetings held

during the year Attendance
Member Name HESBRE Rate
MEEH FHRSBAH HE =
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung (Chairman) ZRUESA: (£/F) 2/2 100%
Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da B ESE A 2/2 100%
Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming HIBRA S 2/2 100%
Mr. Huang, Zhouchang =EHELE 2/2 100%

Tasks undertaken by the audit committee during the year
included reviewing the 2008 audited financial statements
and the annual results announcement, reviewing the
interim report for the six months ended 30 June 2009
and the interim results announcement, considering the
accounting standards adopted, reviewing the explanatory
letter about audit submitted by the auditors to the
management and the response of the management, the
basis of opinion and qualified opinion (if any) made by
the auditors in their report.
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TRERBHRE

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee comprises three
independent non-executive directors, two executive
directors and one non-executive director. The
remuneration committee was established with specific
written terms of reference, principally responsible for
reviewing and approving remuneration plans for directors
and senior management, determining the remuneration
package of executive directors and senior management,
including benefits, pension interests and the payment of
compensation. Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung is chairman
of the remuneration committee and is responsible for
reporting the meeting results and recommendations of
the remuneration committee to the Board after each
meeting.

FMEES

FHNZBEM3BBUINTES 2B UTESTHER X
FIERTEFER - FHEZEGCRUERBETIEAS
BRI EEEREREEABNTFMNIR  EENTE
FEEQEEBNHINGE  BREMNE  RARSESLE
EBXH - RBERERFHREENER  BEREBRE
BRAEFERETHREGNERERIEBESR -

In 2009, the remuneration committee convened 1 20094 @ HFMEZE S LREITINEE - KEREFEIBR
meeting. Members of the remuneration committee and | :
their attendance are as follows:
Attendance
H
No. of meetings attended/
No. of meetings held
during the year Attendance
Member Name HEEBRE Rate
BEEH FHAEBIRH HE =
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung (Chairman) ZRUESA: (£/EF) 1/1 100%
Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da SBESEAE 1/1 100%
Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming HIBRA S 11 100%
Mr. Huang, Zhouchang =EHELE 11 100%
Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin EXREE 11 100%
Mr. Wong, John Ying Man EE G 1/1 100%

Tasks undertaken by the remuneration committee
during the year included reviewing the remuneration
structure, remuneration policy and bonus system of
the Group, assessing performance of executive
directors, considering the salary adjustment for the
year and making recommendations to the Board. The
remuneration committee also ensures that no director
or senior management member determines his own
remuneration.
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Corporate Governance Report

The remuneration policy of the Group is to determine
the remuneration of executive directors and senior
management based on their responsibilities, qualifications
and working performance. No director or any of his
associates is involved in deciding his own remuneration.
The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an
incentive to the directors, employees and other eligible
participants. Details of the share option scheme are set
out in note 23 to the financial statement.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee comprises one non-executive
director, Mr. Huang, Zhouchang (Chairman), and three
independent non-executive directors, Mr. Leung. Michael
Kai Hung; Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da and Mr. Ng, Yiu
Ming. The nomination committee is to deal with the
appointment, re-election and retirement of directors.

TERERBHRE

AEENFHBRREARTEENSREEABRRETHY
BE BERTERAMETCEMNS - REEFHHMEY
BALSTREERNGFHME - NRBRATEBAEET A
HBES BEEREMEERAL - BERESZFBE
R T R E23
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In 2009, the nomination committee convened 1 meeting. 720094 @ HHEZ B @ BRT1XEZH - KEREFEER
Members of the nomination committee and their 1R :
attendance are as follows:
Attendance
HE
No. of meetings attended/
No. of meetings held
during the year Attendance
Member Name HEESBRE Rate
REER FHAEBRH HE=R
Mr. Huang, Zhouchang (Chairman) H=HELE (FF) 1/1 100%
Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da B ESE AL 11 100%
Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming HIBRA S 11 100%
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung RIS A& 11 100%
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TRERBHRE

ROLES OF THE BOARD AND MANAGEMENT

The Board is principally responsible for establishing
the development direction of the Group, formulating
targets and business development plans, approving
major agreements and matters, and monitoring
the performances of senior management. It is also
responsible for corporate governance with a view
to increasing shareholders’ value. Led by the three
general managers, the management is responsible for
implementing the strategies and plans developed by
the Board.

The Company has developed a schedule of matters
reserved to the Board for decisions and has separately
identified those functions reserved to the Board. The
Board will review those arrangements on a regular basis
to ensure that the arrangements meet the needs of the
Company.

ROLES AND DUTIES OF CHAIRMAN AND
GENERAL MANAGER

The chairman and the general manager (equivalent
to chief executive officer) have different roles. The
chairman is responsible for the operation of the Board
and the general managers are responsible for managing
the operations of the Group. Their functions have been
clearly divided to ensure a balanced distribution of power
and no authority will concentrate on a single individual.

Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae, the chairman of the Board,
is principally responsible for leading the Board and
ensures the Board to act in the best interests of the
Company. The chairman ensures that the Board to
operate effectively and perform its proper duties and
discuss all important and proper matters in a timely
manner. The chairman is responsible for convening
Board meetings, consulting, determining and approving
the agenda of each Board meeting, and ensuring that
directors are provided sufficient information on current
matters in a timely manner. The chairman oversees
the structure, number of members and composition of
the Board and makes recommendations to the Board
and the relevant committees on any intended changes.
The chairman is also responsible for ensuring that
the Company formulates good corporate governance
practice and procedure.
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Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin, the deputy executive
chairman, an executive director and a general manager,
is principally responsible for the daily operation and
management of the Group’s overall operations and
implementing the Board’s operating strategy and
policy and delegating tasks to all departments for
implementation so as to realize the Board’s objectives
and decisions. In addition, he is also responsible for
the Group’s financial reporting, internal control, material
procurement and control, logistics, customs, taxes
and legal matters and compliance, coordinating close
cooperation among all departments, uniting efforts of
staff and encouraging the initiative of staff so as to
ensure smooth and effective operation of the Company’s
operations and systems.

Mr. Wong, John Ying Man, an executive director
and a general manager, is principally responsible for
the daily operation and management of the Group’s
overall operations and implementing the Board’s
operating strategy and policy and delegating tasks to
all departments for implementation so as to realize the
Board’s objectives and decisions. In addition, he is also
responsible for research & development, production,
quality assurance and new product innovations,
coordinating close cooperation among all departments,
uniting efforts of staff and encouraging the initiative of
staff so as to ensure smooth and effective operation of
the Company’s operations and systems.

Mr. Mok, Kin Hing, an executive director and a general
manager, is principally responsible for the daily operation
and management of the Group’s overall operations
and implementing the Board’s operating strategy and
policy and delegating tasks to all departments for
implementation so as to realize the Board’s objectives
and decisions. In addition, he is also responsible for
supervising all personnel issues at our Nansha production
facilities, all capital equipments installation and disposal,
and overseeing all employee champions programs to
optimize costs and make sure our facilities are in full
compliance with local, international and environment
laws and standards.
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TRERBHRE

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Article 95 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, the Board is entitled to appoint any person
as director from time to time or at any time to fill a
casual vacancy or add a new member to the Board. For
nomination, the nominee’s qualifications, capabilities and
potential to make contribution to the Company shall be
taken into consideration by the nomination committee.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors acknowledge their responsibility in preparing
financial statements of the Group.

The finance department of the Company is managed by
a qualified staff and supervised by executive director
and general manager, Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin,
who is a U.S. certified public accountant. With the
assistance of the finance department, the Board will
ensure that the preparation of the financial statements
of the Group complies with relevant regulations and
applicable accounting standards.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2009, the audit fee
was approximately HK$768,000.

The statement of reporting responsibility issued by Baker
Tilly Hong Kong Limited, the auditor of the Company, in
respect of the financial statements of the Group is set
out in the independent auditor’s report on pages 40 to
41,
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has maintained communication with
its shareholders through the annual general meeting
or other general meetings and encourages them to
participate in general meetings. Registered shareholders
receive notices of general meetings by post. The notice
of general meeting contains the agenda, the proposed
resolutions and the voting form. All shareholders of
the Company are entitled to attend the annual general
meeting and special general meetings of the Company.
Shareholders who are unable to attend the general
meeting can fill in the proxy form attached with the
notice of general meeting and return the same to the
share registrar and transfer office of the Company so as
to appoint their representatives or the chairman of the
meeting as their proxies.
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BAKER TILLY

HONG KONG LIMITED

BB REGETIET AR

12/E., China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong

T T 168 -

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO
THE SHAREHOLDERS OF RAYMOND
INDUSTRIAL LIMITED

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Raymond Industrial Limited (the “Company”) set out
on pages 42 to 126, which comprise the consolidated
and company balance sheets as at 31 December 2009,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes
designing, implementing and maintaining internal
control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies;
and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in
the circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audit. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section
141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to
whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true
and fair presentation of the financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the state of the affairs of
the Company and of the Group as at 31 December
2009 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 16 April 2010

Chan Kwan Ho, Edmond
Practising certificate number P02092
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CO“SOI'dated |n00me Statement (for the year ended 31 December 2009)

%éjﬁé 43):2 (820095 12HA31HLLEE)

2009 2008
Note HK$ HK$
Kzt B BB
Turnover =E3 4 817,000,353 724,191,127
Cost of sales SHE AR (736,364,949) (682,305,902)
Gross profit ER 80,635,404 41,885,225
Other revenue H g A 5 1,046,891 6,019,398
Other net income/(loss) HAFWA L (BE) 5 837,376 (3,063,872)
Selling expenses HEER (13,819,922)  (15,765,821)
General and administrative expenses 1T & (60,716,856)  (59,694,521)
Profit/(loss) before taxation BRBLEDER (EE) 6 7,982,893 (30,619,591)
Income tax (expense)/credit Frig®i () 5tA 7 (22,629) 10,329,332
Profit/(loss) for the year and AN TR R
attributable to equity REERRN (FE)
shareholders of the Company 10 7,960,264 (20,290,259)
Earnings/(loss) per share BRERN (&E) 11
Basic, HK cents A - B 2.02 (5.15)
Diluted, HK cents #E  8l 2.02 (5.15)

Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of BRAERIARRIEEFEHMN 2 EatsE AN ZRERF
the Company attributable to the profit/(loss) for the year  1E&E X KizE24(b)
are set out in note 24(b).

The notes on pages 51 to 126 form part of these HEHNES1EEE126E 2T REXILFINBIREK 22—
financial statements. e
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Consolldated Statement Of Comprehenswe INCOME (ror the year ended 31 December 2009
,?E 'éf =+ E E ﬁ_é 43,% (B Z2009F12A31HLFE)

-.JI-."

2009 2008
HK$ HK$
Profit/(loss) for the year REERF (FE) 7,960,264 (20,290,259)
Other comprehensive income FEHM2EmKES :
for the year:
Exchange differences on translation MEIRINEB I B RREER
of financial statements of overseas =8 mIIE 2 FE
subsidiaries, net of nil tax 3,083,420 13,366,721
Total comprehensive income/(loss) ERATBRREGEREEZ
for the year and attributable to 2mEkE S (EBE) 85
equity shareholders of the Company 11,043,684 (6,923,538)

The notes on pages 51 to 126 form part of these #HMNES1BEEF 1268 2 Wik AEKILEFIBHET 2 —B
financial statements. % o
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Consolidated Balance Sheet (t 31 becember 2009)
%éﬁ?ﬁ ﬁ%%‘:{ (200912831 &HE)

i R L Sl C D TR

2009 2008
Note HK$ HK$
k3 B JE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Fixed assets EEEE 13
— Property, plant and equipment e/ E N 173,551,404 171,228,336
— Interests in leasehold land held —BEKLEHEREERZ
for own use under operating Tt HbERS
leases 13,986,300 14,383,564
Interests in associates R RNl 14 - -
Deferred tax assets BEAEFIEE E 16(b) 6,672,459 5,727,623
194,210,163 191,339,523
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 17 97,556,670 88,045,302
Trade and other receivables B 5 REMEWRETE 18 133,042,449 76,581,163
Tax recoverable AR B I8 16(a) 5,409,313 7,882,898
Cash and cash equivalents BEMBESSEIER 19 175,402,884 215,925,630
411,411,316 388,434,993
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables B 5 N EMERIRIE 20 118,302,415 85,917,711
Dividends payable FERTAR B 1,349,632 1,519,973
119,652,047 87,437,684
Net current assets REBEEFE 291,759,269 300,997,309
Total assets less current liabilities BEERARTEE 485,969,432 492,336,832
Non-current liabilities FnBERE
Deferred tax liabilities FIETIH B F 16(b) 165,186 2,411,225
NET ASSETS BEEFE 485,804,246 489,925,607
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Consolidated Balance Sheet (at 31 pecember 2009)

%é‘ﬁgﬁ%% (2009%12A31H&EH)

2009 2008
Note HK$ HK$
HiE B B

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXRKf#E
Share capital PN 24(c) 197,092,442 196,932,442
Reserves i 288,711,804 292,993,165
TOTAL EQUITY R 485,804,246 489,925,607

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 16 April 2010.

Wilson Wong Kin Lae Raymond Wong Man Hin

HEF BENE
Director Director
EE EZE

The notes on pages 51 to 126 form part of these

financial statements. (vl

R2010F4 A16 R EE S & LIRET)E -
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Balance Sheet (at 31 December 2009)
ﬁéﬁﬁi (2009%F12HA31HEHE)

2009 2008
Note HK$ HK$
k3 B JE
Non-current assets kRBEE

Fixed assets EEEE
— property, plant and equipment — Y BEREE 13 7,719,713 11,349,481
Investments in subsidiaries MEARIEE 15 231,356,331 212,142,463
239,076,044 223,491,944

Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 17 1,273,028 11,623,040
Trade and other receivables B 5 RE A EWRETE 18 116,756,426 68,998,362
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUBT B A FBRIE 15 22,414,522 35,572,307
Tax recoverable AR B I8 16(a) 6,541,395 8,244,295
Cash and cash equivalents BE MBS SEIER 19 124,933,994 154,254,913
271,919,365 278,692,917

Current liabilities REAE
Trade and other payables B 5 MEMERIRIE 20 72,327,071 52,961,308
Amounts due to subsidiaries FETHI B A B BRIE 15 25,253,075 28,002,309
Dividends payable FERTAR B 1,349,632 1,519,973
98,929,778 82,483,590
Net current assets REEERE 172,989,587 196,209,327
Total assets less current liabilities AEERBAHERE 412,065,631 419,701,271

Non-current liabilities FnBER

Deferred tax liabilities EEIBEE 16(b) 148,242 2,153,992
NET ASSETS EEFE 411,917,389 417,547,279
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Balance Sheet (at 31 December 2009)

ﬁg ﬁ%%‘% (2009%12A31H&EH)

2009 2008
Note HK$ HK$
Kz B JB MK

CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXRf#HE 24
Share capital N 197,092,442 196,932,442
Reserves (G 214,824,947 220,614,837
TOTAL EQUITY R 411,917,389 417,547,279

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of 201054816 EEEE & REBET -
directors on 16 April 2010.

Wilson Wong Kin Lae Raymond Wong Man Hin
HEA BEXHE

Director Director

EE EBEZE

The notes on pages 51 to 126 form part of these HNFES1EEF 1268 2Kt AAEKRI S EHRET 2 —B

financial statements. B e
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in EQUIity or the year ended 31 Decomber 2009
.5-'5_; é *E ﬁMﬁ % E’J 4%:2 (BZ2009F12A31HLFE)

The PRC
statutory
Share Share  Exchange Capital  Retained reserve Total
capital  premium reserve reserve  earnings h equity
Bx RAEE  EXRG  EARBE  REBN iERE  AMER
Note HKS$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS$ HK$ HK$
et Y Vi Vil i BE i BE
At 1 January 2008 #2008%1A1A 196,932,442 179,749,234 35,187,128 47168 156,076,487 25,878,356 593,870,815
Changes in equity for 2008: 20085 2 BHEE
Appropriation to the PRC statutory reserve S ELET RER 24(d)(iv) - - - - (1,626,101) 1,626,101 -
Dividends approved in respect of the HERS
- previous year -fE 24(b) - - - - (82,711,625) - (82,711,625)
- current year - k£ 24(b) - - - - (19,693,244) - (19,693,244)
Equity-settled share-based transactions BEEMARABEREE - - - 5,390,041 - - 5,390,041
Cancellation of share options DRERE - - - (6,842) - - (6,842)
Total comprehensive loss for the year TERERELE - - 13,366,721 - (20,290,259) - (6,923,539)
At 31 December 2008 and R2008512A31A &
1 January 2009 2009£181H 196,932,442 179,749,234 48553849 5430367 31,755,258 27,504,457 489,925,607
Changes in equity for 2009: 095 252D
Appropriation to the PRC statutory reserve  HELZFEEE 24(d)(iv) - - - - (350473) 350473 -
Dividends approved in respect RERERS
of the previous year 24(b) - - - - (19,693,244) - (19,693,244)
Shares issued under share option scheme  BREE Z{72 Rl
- gross proceeds - Ela 24(c)i) 160,000 41,600 - - - - 201,600
- transfer from capital reserve - mEREEEY - 36,144 - (36,144) - - -
Equity-settled share-based transactions ~ fEXEM MR AERER - - - 4448743 - - 4448743
Cancellation of share options DRRRE = = - (122,144) = - (122,144)
Total comprehensive income for the year — AE2ENHEE - - 3,083,420 - 7,960,264 - 11,043,684
At 31 December 2009 #2000%12831A 197,092,442 179,826,978 51,637,269 9,720,822 19,671,805 27,854,930 485,804,246

The notes on pages 51 to 126 form part of these

financial statements.
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CO”SOI'dated CaSh FIOW Statement (for the year ended 31 December 2009)

MERETMRER 8220005128318 1L58)

2009 2008
Note HK$ HK$
Kzt B B
Operating activities ReEEE
Profit/(loss) before taxation BRELADRF(EE) 7,982,893  (30,619,591)
Adjustments for: EE
— Interest income — FBIA 5 (806,891) (5,779,398)
— Depreciation —E 6(b) 24,779,575 25,650,172
— Net loss/(gain) on disposal of —HEME - BER
property, plant and equipment B FEE (W) 5 240,155 (23,582)
— Amortisation of interests in — BHCEREREER Y
leasehold land held for own T RERS
use under operating leases 6(b) 488,140 484,819
— Equity-settled share-based — R ENRAERIER
payment transactions 4,326,599 5,383,199
— Foreign exchange loss, net — [ R R g8 848,762 4,954,326
Operating profit before changes EEESBBAIKE RN
in working capital 37,859,233 49,945
(Increase)/decrease in inventories (), EAEE (9,511,368) 15,465,684
(Increase)/decrease in trade and (&), R8BS %
other receivables Hith pE U BR 18 (56,461,286) 44,718,262
Increase/(decrease) in trade and B/ ) 5k
other payables Hh & BR IR 32,384,704  (29,452,745)
Decrease in provision for WS B
financial loss - (7,800,000)
Cash generated from operations REELE RS 4,271,283 22,981,146
Tax paid MBS
Hong Kong profits tax paid EBFEBREH (165,305) (13,116,507)
Overseas tax paid HNRIB (531,146) (1,443,655)
Overseas tax refunded TGN IR [B] 7(a) - 8,503,227
Net cash generated from RETHELEZRSFE
operating activities 3,574,832 16,924,211
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ConSOIidated CaSh FIOW Statement (for the year ended 31 December 2009)

%éiﬁﬁijlbi 45):2 (B Z2009F12H831HLLEE)

2009 2008
HK$ HK$
B B
Investing activities REEE
Payment for the property, SIWE - BE R EE
plant and equipment (26,232,694) (9,927,085)
Proceeds from sale of property, HEME  BENERERESRE
plant and equipment 706,312 397,029
Interest received FE YA 806,891 5,779,398
Net cash used in investing REZBXHZRESFE
activities (24,719,491)  (3,750,658)
Financing activities R EE
Proceeds from shares issued under  Z/TREARRERR 1D 2 Yz
share option scheme 201,600 -

Dividends paid SR E (19,863,585) (102,183,313)
Net cash used in financing RMEEE T HESFE

activities (19,661,985) (102,183,313)
Decrease in cash and BABEERESEEIER

cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents

MA1BZRERREEHEERR

(40,806,644)

(89,009,760)

at 1 January 215,925,630 305,371,471
Effect of foreign exchange HNEERSHH 2 HE

rate changes 283,898 (436,081)
Cash and cash equivalents M12A31BZEER

at 31 December BEEEEE 175,402,884 215,925,630

X

The notes on pages 51 to 126 form part of these #HNRFES1EESE

financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1 COMPANY INFORMATION

Raymond Industrial Limited (the “Company”) is a
company incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong and
has its registered office and principal place of business
at Rooms 1801-1813, 18th Floor, Grandtech Centre, 8
On Ping Street, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong.

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for
the current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Note 3 provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application of
these developments to the extent that they are relevant
to the Group for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these financial statements.

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period (see note 32).

A summary of significant accounting policies adopted by
the Group is set out below.

A B M &E

1 YNGR ¢

FEEBEEABRAR ([AAR]) REBZMAKL - AR
M ERER T BEEHBNREBT AL BELFEEHN\RE
ZEoh )+ \iE21801-1813% ©

2 FESIHEER

(a) EHREH
WEFBRERDIBRBEMERA 2 BBNIEHREER ([FF
M EEL]) Rl - WEBA=RREEESHNAE
(BAGAE]) BhzMmEER 2 @B EHERE
R BB GETELN ([HFESFEL]) KRE - FEA
R RAUNEBEBRTUEA 2 W TERTE o LEIREIRE T
HEBEBAERIMERRARFESF MR ZBREEK
X o

FEG AT RME THA REBITEBVBREE
Al RAKERARBZE RS HAEERERKA 12
RIERA - AVIRER I S BERMAEERITIBESF
HEMEKR S RREIMRRNZEMBHRRE
£t EIIRHIEES

AEBEASFFERRPNTADAREROEBSSHER
M (RKME32) -

AEERBzEXSTTHREREHIINT -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

R B K&

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for year ended
31 December 2009 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) and
the Group’s interests in associates.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application
of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty
are discussed in note 31.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(c) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control
exists when the Group has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies of an entity so as to
obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control,
potential voting rights that presently are exercisable are
taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same way
as unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is
no evidence of impairment.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see

note 2(g)(ii)).
(d) Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has
significant influence, but not control or joint control, over
its management, including participation in the financial
and operating policy decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in
the consolidated financial statements under the equity
method and is initially recorded at cost and adjusted
thereafter for the post acquisition change in the Group’s
share of the associate’s net assets and any impairment
loss relating to the investment (see note 2(g)(ii)). The
Group’s share of the post-acquisition and post-tax results
of the associates and any impairment losses for the year
are recognised in the consolidated income statement
whereas the Group’s share of the post-acquisition
post-tax items of the associates’ other comprehensive
income is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

A B M &E

2 ESTTEX®)

(c) KMBARA

MEBARDAEEES 2 AR - EAEEERRZER
ZWW&W“ﬁ CAFE MR EDRE P RS M - BRA
RAKEEG - N BRI - RITY A FIIRZEE
KRERCDHEER -

(8 A B 2 BN EA G R RHERE HARE W BR
R EEREFRELRL SERABERZEHBIRS

REEEZEAARER LGN HERHGFESVBHRRE2
UK - EREEBRTCHBEREZBERLT - EEAE
RPMELEZ RERER - @R ABBRWRMER 2 7ER
8 °

RARBZEERBRA  RKTER
BEEEER AR (RHEE2(g)(i) °

Bl Z BB AR E

BhHASEHEAEATER) E?ﬂ
F BEAREBRSEAPHEREERE

BENRRENER S AR ALGAPMERE - FIIA K
AR - MREENEB N ALEAEHME AR ZEE
FEREBRERERBBT AR (AME2(9)) - 42418
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(d) Associates (continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest
in the associate, the Group’s interest is reduced to nil
and recognition of further losses is discontinued except
to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associate. For this purpose, the Group’s interest in
the associate is the carrying amount of the investment
under the equity method together with the Group’s long-
term interests that in substance form part of the Group’s
net investment in the associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’s interest in the associate,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they
are recognised in profit or loss.

(e) Property, plant and equipment

(i) Iltems of property, plant and equipment are stated
in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see note

2(g)(ii)).

The cost of construction in progress includes
the cost of machinery, materials, construction
expenditures and other costs directly attributable
to bringing the assets to a working condition for
its intended use.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment, less
their estimated residual value, if any, over their
estimated useful lives at the following annual
rates:

Buildings held for own use which are
situated on leasehold land, where the fair
value of the building could be measured
separately from the fair value of the
leasehold land at the inception of the
lease (see note 2(f)(i))

Plant and machinery

Furniture, fixtures and equipment

Moulds

Motor vehicles

4.0% - 4.5% straight line

9.0% - 18.0% straight line
9.0% - 33.3% straight line
9.0% straight line

25.0% reducing balance and
18.0% straight line

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual
value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Construction in progress is not depreciated until it
is completed and ready for its intended use.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement
or disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference
between the estimated net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of
retirement or disposal.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(f) Leased assets
An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to
use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of
time in return for a payment or a series of payments.
Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless
of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a
lease.
(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held under
finance leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are
classified as operating leases, except where the land
held for own use under an operating lease, the fair value
of which cannot be measured separately from the fair
value of a building situated thereon, is accounted for as
being held under a finance lease, unless the building is
also clearly held under an operating lease. For these
purposes, the inception of the lease is the time that the
lease was first entered into by the Group, or taken over
from the previous lessee.
(i) Operating lease charges
Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in
the accounting period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease
is amortised on a straight-line basis over the period
of the lease term of 50 years. Impairment losses are
recognised in accordance with accounting policy set out
in note 2(g)(ii).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(9)

Impairment of assets
(i) Impairment of receivables

Receivables that are stated at cost are reviewed at
each balance sheet date to determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of
impairment includes observable data that comes to the
attention of the Group about one or more of the following
loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
and

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

For trade and other receivables, the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition of these assets), where the effect
of discounting is material. This assessment is made
collectively where financial assets carried at amortised
cost share similar risk characteristics, such as similar
past due status, and have not been individually assessed
as impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets which
are assessed for impairment collectively are based on
historical loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to the collective group.

A B M &E

2 ESTTEX®)

(99 EERME

() JEYE R E

BRAEIRZEWHIAEHENEEEBER  UEER
BEEBREER TEREREEEARESEENTS
—HXZEERFENBRIE -

- EBAEBEAMBERE

- BY BNBAREENHEELRS

- ERAUERSEERESETEMMEESR : &

- B M5 RBEIEERRENEARNZ(CMmEHER
NERTFIZE -

MEEMZEERFE  BEECREBRLZATITR
FERR

SLAB S REMEWERENS @ MEBSREAEEZKRE
BERZMBEERRERNE (ARNRERZEFEER
AEZERNEZ) R (MRFTHESGERERANTE) WA
AARKRBERBEHNERE o IR HRARTIFRE
TREEABRUNRERSE - PIELHEER &I
AEBRHERRE - IABNFESRFET  SRE
ENARERERESGRBEZBEEEAERUGEERRY
BEEMNBEBRIBELA—FEFERE -

Annual Report 2009 4 if 57

N o

o, SN



,,kiﬁt'r

Notes to the Financial Statements

R B K&

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(g) Impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Impairment of receivables (continued)

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be linked
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, the impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss. A reversal of an impairment
loss shall not result in the asset’s carrying amount
exceeding that which would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful
but not remote. In this case, the impairment losses
for doubtful debts are recorded using an allowance
account. When the Group is satisfied that recovery is
remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is written
off against trade and other receivables directly and
any amounts held in the allowance account relating
to that debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously charged to the allowance account
are reversed against the allowance account. Other
changes in the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off directly are
recognised in profit or loss.

(i) Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at each balance sheet date to identify indications that
the following assets may be impaired or an impairment
loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

- property, plant and equipment;

- pre-paid interests in leasehold land classified as
being held under an operating lease; and

- investments in subsidiaries and associates.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment of assets (continued)
Impairment of other assets (continued)
Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its net selling price and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely independent of
those from other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a
cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss whenever the carrying amount of an asset,
or the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-generating
units are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of assets in the unit (or group of units) on
a pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of
an asset will not be reduced below its individual
fair value less costs to sell, or value in use, if
determinable.

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. A reversal
of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised in
prior years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in which the
reversals are recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

R B K&

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(g) Impairment of assets (continued)
(iii)  Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Group
is required to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in
respect of the first six months of the financial year. At the
end of the interim period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as
it would at the end of the financial year (see notes 2(g)
(i) and (ii)).

(h) Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula and comprises all cost of purchases, cost of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense
in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount
of any reversal of any write-down of inventories is
recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in which the
reversal occurs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(i) Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at
fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost less
impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts (see note
2(g)(i)), except where the receivables are interest-
free loans made to related parties without any fixed
repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at
cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.

(i) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured
in accordance with note 2(n)(i), trade and other payables
are subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost.

(k) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand and deposits with banks that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition.

) Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits and contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in
the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme
in Hong Kong and defined contribution government
pension schemes both in Hong Kong and The People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

R B K&

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
) Employee benefits (continued)

(i) Short term employee benefits and contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans
(continued)

Contributions to mandatory provident fund as required
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance, are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss as incurred.

The employees in Hong Kong and the PRC are members
of the retirement benefit schemes administrated by an
independent trustee in Hong Kong and organised by
the government in the PRC respectively. The Group is
required to contribute, based on a certain percentage
of payrolls, to the retirement benefit schemes to fund
the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefit schemes is to make the
required contributions under the scheme. Contributions
to this retirement benefit schemes are recognised as an
expense in profit or loss as incurred except to the extent
that they are included in the cost of inventories at the
balance sheet date.

(i) Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at grant date using the Black Scholes model,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted. Where the employees have to
meet vesting conditions before becoming unconditionally
entitled to the options, the total estimated fair value of
the options is spread over the vesting period, taking into
account the probability that the options will vest.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
) Employee benefits (continued)
(i) Share-based payments (continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share options
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any adjustment to
the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is
charged/credited to the profit or loss for the year of the
review, unless the original employee expenses qualify for
recognition as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment
to the capital reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the
actual number of options that vest (with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve) except where forfeiture
is only due to not achieving vesting conditions that relate
to the market price of the Company’s shares. The equity
amount is recognised in the capital reserve until either
the option is exercised (when it is transferred to the
share premium account) or the option expires (when it
is released directly to retained earnings).

(m) Income tax

(i) Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax
assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or
loss except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case it is recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

(i) Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previous years.

(iii)  Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(m)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the asset can be
utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits
that may support the recognition of deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the
reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable entity,
and are expected to reverse either in the same
period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a
tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can
be carried back or forward. The same criteria
are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to
the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse in a period,
or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from the initial recognition of
assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting
nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of a
business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the
extent that, in the case of taxable differences,
the Group controls the timing of the reversal
and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that
they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of
the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
discounted.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset
is reviewed at each balance sheet date and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any
such reduction is reversed to the extent that it
becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when
the liability to pay the related dividends is
recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances,
and movements therein, are presented separately
from each other and are not offset. Current tax
assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and
deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities,
if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and
liabilities, the Company or the Group
intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on
either:

— the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which,
in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to
be settled or recovered, intend to
realise the current tax assets and
settle the current tax liabilities on
a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.

(m)

(iv)

A B M &E

FTESTBER (8)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

R B K&

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(n) Financial guarantees issued, provisions
and contingent liabilities

(i) Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments to
reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”)
for a loss the holder incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair
value of the guarantee (being the transaction price,
unless the fair value can otherwise be reliably estimated)
is initially recognised as deferred income within trade
and other payables. Where consideration is received
or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the
consideration is recognised in accordance with the
Group’s policies applicable to that category of asset.
Where no such consideration is received or receivable,
an immediate expense is recognised in profit or loss on
initial recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over
the term of the guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are recognised
in accordance with note 2(n)(ii) if and when (i) it becomes
probable that the holder of the guarantee will call upon
the Group under the guarantee, and (ii) the amount
of that claim on the Group is expected to exceed the
amount currently carried in trade and other payables
in respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount initially
recognised, less accumulated amortisation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(n) Financial guarantees issued, provisions
and contingent liabilities (continued)

(ii) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company
has a legal or constructive obligation arising as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

(o) Revenue recognition

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and the revenue and costs,
if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i) Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered at the
customers’ premises which is taken to be the point in
time when the customer has accepted the goods and
the related risks and rewards of ownership. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is
after deduction of any trade discounts.

A B M &E

2 ESTTEX®)
(n) CEEHMBER BERIREE (E)

(i)  EMEERAAEE
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R B K&

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(0)
(ii)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as income
in the accounting period in which they are earned.

(iii)  Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

()

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date.
Exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or
loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transactions dates.

The results of foreign currencies are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Balance sheet items are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the balance sheet date. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the
exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to that
foreign operation is reclassified from equity to profit and
loss when the profit or loss on disposal is recognsied.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(a)

Product development costs

Expenditure on development activities, whereby
research findings are applied to a plan or design for the
production of new or substantially improved products
and processes, is capitalised if the product or process
is technically and commercially feasible and the Group
has sufficient resources and the intention to complete
development. The expenditure capitalised includes the
costs of materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. Development expenditure is
recognised as an expense in the period in which it is
incurred.

(r) Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party
is considered to be related to the Group if:

(i) the party has the ability, directly or indirectly
through one or more intermediaries, to control the
Group or exercise significant influence over the
Group in making financial and operating policy
decisions, or has joint control over the Group;

(ii) the Group and the party are subject to common

control;

(iii)  the party is an associate of the Group or a joint

venture in which the Group is a venturer;

the party is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s parent,
or a close family member of such an individual,
or is an entity under the control, joint control or
significant influence of such individuals;

the party is a close family member of a party
referred to in (i) or is an entity under the control,
joint control or significant influence of such
individuals; or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan which
is for the benefit of employees of the Group or of
any entity that is a related party of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that individual in their dealings with the
entity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

R B K&

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(s) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of
the regulatory environment. Operating segments which
are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The HKICPA has issued one new HKFRS, a number of
amendments to HKFRSs and new Interpretations that
are first effective for the current accounting period of
the Group and the Company. Of these, the following
developments are relevant to the Group’s financial
statements:

. HKFRS 8, Operating segments

o HKAS 1 (revised 2007), Presentation of financial
statements

o Improvements to HKFRSs (2008)

o Amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial instruments:
Disclosures — improving disclosures about

financial instruments

. Amendments to HKAS 27, Consolidated and
separate financial statements — cost of an
investment in a subsidiary, jointly controlled entity
or associate
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

o Amendments to HKFRS 2, Share-based payment
— vesting conditions and cancellations

Except for HKFRS 8 and HKAS 1 (revised 2007) as
described below, the adoption of these new and revised
HKFRS have no significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements.

HKFRS 8 requires segment disclosure to be based on
the way that the Group’s chief operating decision maker
regards and manages the Group, with the amounts
reported for each reportable segment being the measures
reported to the Group’s chief operating decision maker
for the purposes of assessing segment performance
and making decisions about operating matters. This
contrasts with the presentation of segment information
in prior years which was based on a disaggregation of
the Group’s financial statements into segments based
on related products and services and on geographical
areas. The adoption of HKFRS 8 has resulted in the
presentation of segment information in a manner that
is more consistent with internal reporting provided to
the Group’s most senior executive management, and
has resulted in additional reportable segments being
identified and presented. As this is the first period in
which the Group has presented segment information
in accordance with HKFRS 8, additional explanation
has been included in note 12 which explains the basis
of preparation of the information. Comparative figures
have also been disclosed on a basis consistent with the
revised segment information.

As a result of the adoption of HKAS 1 (revised 2007),
details of changes in equity during the period arising
from transactions with equity shareholders in their
capacity as such have been presented separately from
all other income and expenses in a revised consolidated
statement of changes in equity. All other items of income
and expense are presented in the consolidated income
statement, if they are recognised as part of profit or loss
for the period, or otherwise in a new primary statement,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
Corresponding amounts have been restated to conform
to the new presentation. This change in presentation
has no effect on reported profit or loss, total income and
expense or net assets for any period presented.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

R B K&

4 TURNOVER

The principal activities of the Group are the manufacture

and sale of electrical home appliances.

Turnover represents the sales value of goods supplied
to customers, net of discounts, returns and value added

tax or other sales taxes.

5 OTHER REVENUE AND NET

4 EXH

AEETEXBERERHERAES -

5 HtARFRA (EE)

LEERHERTP ZHEE  HIBRTH - RESIEEDN
REMHEM

INCOME/(LOSS)
2009 2008
HK$ HK$
B JBEHE
Other revenue Hil A
Bank interest income ERITH B A 806,891 5,779,398
Rentals receivable from operating HEERLNR 2HERA
leases (note 28(b)) (f1:£28(b)) 240,000 240,000
1,046,891 6,019,398
Other net income/(loss) HiBWA (&E)
Net (loss)/gain on disposal of property, LEWME - BER
plant and equipment =T (B18) W (240,155) 23,582
Net exchange loss [E 5 FE 18 (282,322) (4,112,914)
Write-back of other payables H b 2 15f B O] 4 - 510,752
Gain on disposal of scrap materials SRRy 711,888 =
Sundry income HAth e 647,965 514,708
837,376 (3,063,872)
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B B MY &F

BRBLADEF (E518)

BREAER(B18) T MK T 51 B IR%ER

6 PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION 6

Profit/(loss) before taxation is arrived after charging:

2009 2008
HK$ HK$
B B
(a) Staff costs (a) BT A
Salaries, wages and other benefits #Fe  TEREMETR 113,543,074 100,996,925
Discretionary bonuses B 158 IEAL 864,310 1,100,000
Contributions to defined contribution RIRE B
retirement plans 10,724,652 10,584,209
Equity-settled share-based payment R ENRAERIEE
transactions* 3,829,634 4,603,838
128,961,670 117,284,972

FEHE2009F12A31BILFE  EEEHFABRRFTE
EREREMNRARERIBEE 2 AT EELH%4,326,599

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group  *
recognised the fair values of equity-settled share-based

payment transactions amounting to HK$4,326,599 (2008:
HK$5,383,199) in the consolidated income statement,
of which HK$3,829,634 (2008: HK$4,603,838) has been
included in staff costs as the share options were granted
to the Group’s employees (including the directors).

7T (20084 : & #5,383,1997T) + H A5 %3,829,6347T
(20084 : #%4,603,838)) RAFER TEEEE (8
BES) JEREEBREEEINAR -

2009 2008
HK$ HK$
B JE B
(b) Other items (b) E1EH
Cost of inventories sold* HEFEK A 736,364,949 682,305,902
Amortisation of interests in leasehold BHECEHERIEERZ
land held for own use under T HbRE S
operating leases 488,140 484,819
Depreciation e 24,779,575 25,650,172
Impairment losses on trade and B 5 R H A EWARTE 2 R E RS
other receivables (note 18) (B1:£18) - 5,486,835
Auditors’ remuneration ZE R & 805,000 838,000
Product development costs EmEREKA 408,237 938,627

Cost of inventories includes HK$117,946,000 (2008: +#

HK$108,476,000) relating to staff costs and depreciation,
which amounts are also included in the respective total
amounts disclosed separately above or in note 6(a) for
each of these types of expenses.

WEFTERNABEBREIRARINE 2 XL BB
117,946,0007C (20084 : #5#108,476,0007T) * %58
MEFERKE6()HESEEREEE -
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7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7 MEBBRRZMEN
INCOME STATEMENT

(a)  Taxation in the consolidated income statement (a) REABHEEREVZHAE

represents:
2009 2008
HK$ HK$
B JBH
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax AEAFE - FEEMEH
Provision for the year (note 16(a)) NERE (Hit16(a)) 105,055 144,906
Under/(over)-provision in respect TFERERLY ()
of prior years 1,702,900 (1)
1,807,955 144,905
Current tax — PRC Enterprise AEEHRE - FELERBH
Income Tax
Provision for the year (note 16(a)) KEREE (KiE16(a)) 1,358,988 340,999
PRC Enterprise Income Tax refund FEEMSTHRE - (8,503,227)
Under/(over)-provision in respect TEERERD (FR)
of prior years 3,093 (55,350)
1,362,081 (8,217,578)
Deferred tax (note 16(b)(i)) EERE (K216(b)(i))
Origination and reversal of temporary BRI IR Iy = R A E A N0
differences (1,206,212) (2,256,659)
Over-provision in respect of prior years  {X 4 E B & T4 (1,941,195) =
(3,147,407)  (2,256,659)
Income tax expense/(credit) MEBZE (GTA) 22,629 (10,329,332)

(i) The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax (i) BAFB IR B AT E G5 ERE A AKX
is calculated at 16.5% (2008: 16.5%) of the 16.5% (20084 : 16.5%) 1R %A -
estimated assessable profits for the year.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
INCOME STATEMENT (continued)

Taxation in the consolidated income statement
represents: (continued)

Taxation for subsidiaries outside Hong Kong is
charged at the appropriate current rate of taxation
ruling at the relevant tax jurisdictions.

Two subsidiaries in the PRC have been entitled
to preferential tax treatments in the PRC. Upon
the implementation of the Enterprise Income Tax
Law of the PRC on 1 January 2008, a five-year
transitional period had been granted to entities
that previously enjoyed the preferential tax rate
of 15%, over which the tax rate will gradually
be increased to the standard rate of 25%. The
applicable rates for these two subsidiaries in the
PRC for 2009 are 10% and 20% (2008: 9% and
18%) respectively.

The change in the carrying amount of the deferred
tax assets and liabilities, as a result of the change
in tax rate, is recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

(a)

(i)

R B B &

mEBBERZMEHR (&)

B IS B 2 R BB A B SR RS 0 2
TR -

EREMENBARZESFHRAEESR  BFE
ARHEFBE B EMEH CGhF%E) R2008F1H1H
g REFBEE BRI ZE15%ERR R 2 AL
EREMBEARZ AR AFHERATEEES
FIEHESEEERHER  ERBABRSZER
R25% o 2008 F1A1HAI ZA15%EEHEE 2
o BB B A B FR2009F M E BB E 5 Bl A10% &
20% (20084 : 9%} 18%) °

AMEXEHEFREEVREERABZREEHLR
2288 CRGEEERRAER -
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ik B M

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7

INCOME STATEMENT (continued)

Reconciliation between income tax expense/ (b)

B R R

(credit) and accounting profit/(loss) at the B):

applicable tax rates:

mEBBERZMEHR (&)

/xS (GEA) kg

sHER (8

2009 2008

HK$ HK$

B JBH
Profit/(loss) before taxation BREBLADRF(EE) 7,982,893  (30,619,591)
Notional tax on profit/(loss) before taxation, 1275 Bt [ iE F & R 51 8 2 BB AT

calculated at the rates applicable wmA L (EE) BERIE

to profits in the jurisdictions concerned 1,118,450 (5,621,549)
Tax effect of non-taxable income FEFERTIUA 2 T 2 & (489,001) (2,991,028)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses PRI 2 BB 8 2,387,505 5,153,083
Tax effect of unused tax losses RERRABBEE BB E

not recognised 92 2,606,024
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses RERAE A AR BB BT E

previously not recognised (2,605,321) -
PRC Enterprise Income Tax refunded FEEMSTRE - (8,503,227)
Over-provisions in respect of prior years, &4 & F5EF 4%

e (235,202) (55,351)
Effect of changes in tax rates BERE BB E (157,087) -
Effect of temporary difference not AERCERER 2B

recognised 16,875 121,052
Others HHy (13,682)  (1,038,336)
Actual tax credit/(expense) ERBEZE (G A) 22,629 (10,329,332)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

R B B &

8 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8 EEME

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section ZEEMERIEBTE R MEHIE 1618 FELNT ¢
161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as

follows:
Salaries, Share-hased
allowances payments
and benefits Discretionary  Retirement (note)
Directors’ in kind bonuses scheme Rx 2009
fees e BfE contributions  Sub-total EfER Total
e REREN  BHZEL RHEHR gt (hit) it
HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HK$ HKS$
Chairman IE
Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae EnflEE 120,000 10,700 25,000 - 155,700 339,021 494,721
Executive directors YiEs
Mr. Wong, John Ying Man EAEEE 140,000 2,657,961 120,000 144000 3,061,961 338,853 3,400,814
Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin EXELE 140,000 2,050,700 135,000 108,000 2,433,700 338,853 2,772,553
Mr. Mok, Kin Hing BRAEE 120,000 1,044,500 100,000 46,000 1,310,500 338,853 1,649,353
Non-executive directors FTES
Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang EERA-aN 120,000 - - - 120,000 169,427 289,421
Mr. Huang, Zhouchang EHELL 160,000 - = = 160,000 169427 329,427
M. Li, Yinghong SHATME 120,000 - = = 120,000 169,427 289,427

Independent non-executive ~ BUFHTEE

directors

Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung PREEE 160,000 - - - 160,000 33,885 193,885
Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da BLELE 160,000 = = = 160,000 33,885 193,885
Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming mERLE 160,000 - - - 160,000 33,885 193,885
Alternate directors REZ

Mr. Xiong, Zhengfeng REESEE - - - - - 33,885 33,885
Mr. Zhang, Yuankun FLHEE - 146,922 4,851 = 151,773 101,656 253,429
Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit BRREE - - - - - 33,885 33,885

1,400,000 5,910,783 384,851 298,000 7,993,634 2,134,942 10,128,576
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8 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

(continued)

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section
161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as

8

EEME (&)

EEMEREFERABGIE161EHKENT

follows:
Salaries, Share-hased
allowances payments
and benefits Discretionary  Retirement (note)
Directors’ in kind bonuses scheme R 2008
fees 4 B contributions  Sub-total EBER Total
Be  EMREN  BREL  BHEHR gt (W) fit
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
Chairman I
Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae BEflnE 120,000 17,800 50,000 - 187,800 520,042 707,842
Executive directors HiTES
Mr. Wong, John Ying Man ERGRE 140,000 2,776,600 270,000 144,000 3,330,600 520,030 3,850,630
Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin ~ EXB%4 140,000 2,057,800 370,000 108000 2,675,800 520,030 3,195,830
Mr. Mok, Kin Hing feREE
(appointed on 1 July 2008) (2008%7A1REZ() 120,000 427,200 - 18,000 565,200 520030 1,085,230
Non-executive directors FHES
Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang ERTET 120,000 - - = 120,000 239,487 359,487
Mr. Huang, Zhouchang EHBLE 160,000 - - - 160,000 239,487 399,487
M. Qiang, Wenyu YL
(resigned on 4 July 2008) (20087 F4REHT) - - - - - - -
Ms. Li, Yinghong FRA A
(appointed on 4 July 2008) (200857 A4REZST) 120,000 - - - 120,000 239,487 359,487
Independent non-executive BUFHES
directors
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung 2EELE 160,000 - - - 160,000 53,892 213,892
Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da rERE 160,000 - - - 160,000 53,892 213,892
Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming il 2 160,000 - - - 160,000 53,892 213,892
Alternate directors RES
Mr. Xiong, Zhengfeng RIEELE - - - - - 61,583 61,583
Mr. Mok, Kin Hing ERELE
(resigned on 1 July 2008) (2008F7A1BEE) - - - - - - -
Mir. Zhang, Yuankun oy
(appointed on 4 July 2008) (20087 A4REZA) - - - - - 127,270 127,270
Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit BRfEE
(appointed on 4 July 2008) (200857 F4REZ ) - - - - - 61,583 61,583
1400000 5,279,400 690,000 270000 7639400 3210705 10,850,105
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

(continued)

These represent the estimated value of share options
granted to the directors under the Company’s share
option scheme. The value of these share options is
measured according to the Group’s accounting policies
for share-based payment transactions as set out in
note 2(l)(ii) and, in accordance with that policy, includes
adjustments to reverse amounts accrued in previous
years where grants of equity instruments are forfeited.

The details of these benefits in kind, including the
principal terms and number of options granted, are
disclosed under the paragraph “Share option scheme”
in the directors’ report and note 23.

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments,
three (2008: three) are directors whose emoluments are
disclosed in note 8. The aggregate of the emoluments
in respect of the other two (2008: two) individuals are

©

AR B M &

EEME &)

BUEEIRRBEARR ZBREABRTER ZBREN
e - BEREEERRBEARENGHBERTUREARE
1A B B M R 2() (i) IR LR B - Y EBREEE
TRRMM @ EETHE -

BHFHE EEIZ2HIIRBRERTRE  £EFHRS
E P BB BUESH B K MY 23 EE -

18 5l & = B

7N 5 50 £ = ¥ B A = 7 & 53z (20084 : 3fu) &
EREZHEESE R EES - #r T2fz (20084 : 2fi7)
REFALZBEOHMT

as follows:

2009 2008

HK$ HK$

B JBEH

Salaries and other emoluments e REAET 1,128,929 1,145,150
Discretionary bonuses 15 B IAEAL 102,300 141,050
Retirement scheme contributions RIRE R 75,600 75,600
Share-based payments ARAEMEIER 79,066 95,795
1,385,895 1,457,595

The emoluments of the two (2008: two) individuals with 1 Bl & = % B A £2f7 (20084 : 2fi7) Bl & 48 51 % 47 &0

the highest emoluments are within the following band: N
2009 2008
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE AZ
HK$ Nil — HK$1,000,000 RABZ T E4%1,000,0007T 2 2
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10 PROFIT/(LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO
EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The consolidated profit/(loss) attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company includes a profit of
HK$11,597,651 (2008: loss of HK$19,757,649) which
has been dealt with in the financial statements of the
Company.

11 EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

(a) The calculation of basic earnings/(loss) per
share is based on the profit attributable to
ordinary equity shareholders of the Company of
HK$7,960,264 (2008: loss of HK$20,290,259)

10 2ARRREMGER (BR)

AARBREMZEEEN (BB BEEMNBE
11,597,6517C (20084 : E518 8 119,757,6497) * HBE
KRR BERER A B -

11 SREN (BE)

(@) BREAAF (FB) 28R UARRAREE
45 & 275 % 778 857,960,264 7T (20084 : [F518
7 1520,290,25970) RARBFE A 2 BT INE TS
1% £1393,882,857 (20084 : 393,864,884 ) Ei@X

and the weighted average number of 393,882,857 ETE
(2008: 393,864,884) ordinary shares in issue
during the year, calculated as follows:
Weighted average number of ordinary shares EERMEFLIIRE
2009 2008
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January MIA1BE#T 2R 393,864,884 393,864,884
Effect of share options exercised 1T REAR I 2 28 (Hfat24(c)(ii))
(note 24(c)(ii)) 17,973 -
Weighted average number of 12 A31 8 2 &R hnwE TR 8
ordinary shares at 31 December 393,882,857 393,864,884
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11 EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

(continued)

(b) The calculation of diluted earnings/(loss) per
share is based on the profit attributable to
ordinary equity shareholders of the Company of
HK$7,960,264 (2008: loss of HK$20,290,259)
and the weighted average number of 394,663,198
(2008: 393,864,884) ordinary shares, calculated
as:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

A B M &E

11 BREAN (EE) &)

by ESREEARF (EE) ZAERUARQABRERE
148 8 2% F 78 7,960,264 7T (20084 : 18
75 120,290,2597T) M hn#E 19 % £2394,663,198
(20084 : 393,864,884) Eimp:t& o

EERMETIRE (88)

(diluted)
2009 2008

Weighted average number of ordinary M12A31 8 2 F ik 2 iE AR

shares at 31 December 393,882,857 393,864,884
Effect of deemed issue of shares under RIBARR FERET BIATRE

the Company’ s share option scheme RIERTTIR D 2 522 (K3123)

for nil consideration (note 23) 780,341 =
Weighted average number or ordinary P12 A31 B 2 TRz e

shares (diluted) at 31 December FHRE (HE) 394,663,198 393,864,884

The diluted loss per share calculations have not included
the outstanding share options as at 31 December 2008
since the effect is anti-dilutive.

12 SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group is principally engaged in a single business
segment, the manufacture and sale of electrical home
appliances, therefore, no analysis in business segment
is presented.

On first-time adoption of HKFRS 8, Operating segments,
and in a manner consistent with the way in which
information is reported internally to the Group’s senior
management for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment, the Group has identified five
reportable segments on a geographical basis: Japan,
United States, the PRC, Europe and rest of the world.
The electrical home appliances are manufactured in the
Group’s manufacturing facilities located in the PRC. The
“rest of the world” segment covers sales of electrical
home appliances to customers in Australia, Canada and
Hong Kong.

SRS EE 2T E RS A #E BUE M A 2 1E R 2008F
12 31 BNARTTE 2 BIE -

12 2#FH

I

AEBTIZXBRUMENHERMER  MAREEKD
AT S 25

o

RERRMZ(EBM B REER]) £85% &2 2 78]
i EREXEESSETHREREABRFESFRE R
DEDMERAEABZEMN —B2TAHE - AEEHK
REREHRMWENS R - BAR - B - FE - BUNRER
Eih o ARBAEFRARER ZREETE - DB H 2R
FEHMEEREEXAERELEN - MEARBBZEP -
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12 SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments. The Group’s
senior executive management monitors the results,
assets and liabilities attributable to each reportable
segment on the following bases:

Segment assets included all tangible assets and current
assets with the exception of interests in associates, tax
balances and other corporate assets. Segment liabilities
included trade creditors, accrued charges and other
payables with the exception of tax balances attributable
to the manufacture and sale activities of the individual
segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments
or which otherwise arise from the depreciation or
amortisation of assets attributable to those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit/(loss)
is “adjusted EBITDA” i.e. “adjusted earnings before
interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation”. To
arrive at adjusted EBITDA, the Group’s earnings are
further adjusted for items not specifically attributed
to individual segments, such as other head office or
corporate administration costs.

In addition to receiving segment information concerning
adjusted EBITDA, management is provided with segment
information concerning inter-segment sales, interest
income and expense from cash balances managed
directly by the segments, depreciation and amortisation
and additions to non-current segment assets used by
the segments in their operations. Inter-segment sales
are priced with reference to prices charged to external
parties for similar orders.
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12 OFHHE (&)
(a) PHEE EEREE

MEHEREAEESSETREEASRFEDHE
RO EERARAZER —B 2T ARE - LT
s AEEZSEBTREERAS RN TERERZA®
DEEIGZESE - EERAE

Y

of il

DHEEREMBENEENRDEE  BETEENNE
RAIZWE - PREHBAMEBAREE - nHAEERE
B MEMBBNFBERTRER BT EREER D A EE
ZAREMNBIA

WARXZHSBAIREDMAEL 2 HERRZED A
EEZXHIREIHERLEEENERBHEMELEZX

g
B ADBEEZEDEL

%5 R, (B8 FRA 2T EAIERAR
EBITDA| - ) [R&HFI8. « BUE « 478 R 4631 2 12 0 2
Rl - AEHEHREBITOA « A% EL 2 WAL Mk
AR S H2 B A (MBEHA FTHAK) i — HiE
3 -

BRESAEMCD FAREBITDAZ D MERI - ERERER
HERAMHEED L FIBWARBD B - TEREHE
ERECHERTZIERANBNELLD R ZIFRB DR EE
ZAEMER - AR D HHEZBRSEZHIMNEERNZE
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12 SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities
(continued)

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments
as provided to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resource allocation
and assessment of segment performance for the year
is set out below.

i i
ol ,b. h &

to the Financial Statements
B B MY &F

12 2EHE (&)

(a) HE&K -EBEEREE (B

FRRHTASBESESETRERABUDEERLTE
DRI 2 BTN T -

Electrical home appliances

FRER
United States The PRC Japan Europe Rest of the world Total
ESE] HE A% B A& GHl
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFrn  BETr BEFn BETr BEFn B¥Tr BEFn BETr BRFn EETr BRFn R
Revenue from  H9\EF 7
external WA
customers 278,896 205,542 22,010 22,862 323,315 341,180 137,603 107,995 55,176 46,612 817,000 724,191
Inter-segment  RFHH
revenue A = - 486,051 414,863 - = - = 694,035 642,644 1,180,086 1,057,507
Reportable IRE
segment BB
revenue 278,896 205,542 508,061 437,725 323,315 341,180 137,603 107,995 749,211 689,256 1,997,086 1,781,698
Reportable TRES B
segment profitl 7 /(&
(loss) (adjusted 1) (%
EBITDA) EBITDA) 11,287 2,112 871 (234) 11,260 (3,507) 5,748 (1,110) 2,251 (480) 31,367 (7,443)
Reportable THESH
segment assets  E - - 379691 329,081 - - - - 06657 315900 686348 645882
Addtonsto  AEEHERE
non-current AHEE
segment assets 2]
during the year - = 25,675 9,167 - = - = 558 760 26,233 9,927
Reportable BE Gy
segment 8f
liabiities (245) (304)  (101558)  (55.324) - - - - (109307) (110007  (2M1,140)  (165635)
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12 SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 12 ZEE|E (#)
(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment (b) AHEDIYA - BRHEE BEEREEZY
revenue, profit or loss, assets and iR
liabilities
2009 2008
HK$°000 HK$°000
BETFT B F T
Revenue PN
Reportable segment revenue BE =N 1,997,086 1,781,698
Elimination of inter-segment revenue AER 7 ZBUR A 85 (1,180,086) (1,057,507)
Consolidated turnover MAEEXR 817,000 724,191
2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T JBMTF T
Profit/(loss) mF (E518)
Reportable segment profit A R E o B A 200,388 173,180
Elimination of inter-segment profits B9 B e ) 4K 8 (169,021) (180,623)
Reporting segment profit/(loss) derived WAREBEINE P 2 O] 55
from Group’s external customers wmF(EE) 31,367 (7,443)
Other revenue and net loss EMRARFEE 1,884 2,957
Depreciation and amortisation e R 3 5 (25,268) (26,134)
Consolidated profit/(loss) before taxation  4E&BEATEF(EE) 7,983 (30,620)
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12 SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 12 2O#HHE (&)

(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment (b) FIHREDHEA  BFREE - EEREBEZY
revenue, profit or loss, assets and R (&)
liabilities (continued)

2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT T
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets AR E D HEE 686,348 645,882
Elimination of inter-segment receivables A58 5 B e Y AR TR K 51 (92,808) (79,718)
593,540 566,164
Tax recoverable AR BRI 5,409 7,883
Deferred tax assets FIETIHE B 6,672 5,727
Consolidated total assets HEBEE 605,621 579,774
Liabilities =N
Reportable segment liabilities AmESHEE (211,110) (165,635)
Elimination of inter-segment payables N 5> B0 FE T BRTE 4K 8 92,808 79,718
(118,302) (85,917)
Dividend payable JE A< % ) (1,350) (1,520)
Deferred tax liabilities EEFBEEE (165) (2,411)
Consolidated total liabilities REBAE (119,817) (89,848)

(c) Major customers

Revenue from major customers, each of whom amounted
to 10% or more of the total revenue, is set out below:

(c) FEEF

REIBEFPHABZWA
£ FHIT

FREF 5 RIE U A10%3K A

2009 2008

HK$’000 HK$°000

BT BT T

Customer A ZEA 323,920 346,544
Customer B =FB 162,258 17,347
Customer C EFC 129,022 97,363
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13 FIXED ASSETS 13 RBEEEE
(a) The Group (a) F&KEH
Interests in
leasehold
land held
for own
use under
Buildings Furniture, operating
held for fixtures and leases Total
Construction ~ ownuse  Plantand  equipment Motor EHE  fixed assets
inprogress ~ #AHA  machinery . Moulds  vehicles  Subdtotal  #fEE BETEE
EEIR  ZBEN HEREE RERRA I8 bt Mt ziHER ait
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS HK$ HKS
B BE B P B pii BE B BE
Cost: A
At 1 January 2008 200851418 4376288 170,028,568 145,830,117 24,876,626 466,016 9,731,693 355,509,308 19,712,828 375,222,136
Exchange adjustments R 104653 7504379 4700884 2,085,984 20,574 361,633 14,888,107 773,669 15,661,776
Additions Em 6,594,876 - 1,778,868 793,668 - 759,673 9,927,085 - 9,927,085
Transfers 7] (8,159,797) 290,176 2,720,397  5,143216 - 6,008 - - -
Disposals = - - (1,338761)  (262,843) - (1,550,098) (3,171,662 - (3,171662)
At 31 December 2008 120085 12731H 2,016,020 178,113,123 153,691,505 32,616,651 486590 9328949 377,152,838 20,486,497 397,639,335
At 1 January 2009 R200951A1H 2,916,020 178,113,123 153,691,505 32,616,651 486590 9,328,949 377,152,838 20,486,497 397,639,335
Exchange adjustments HEAE 25469 1,310,088 816,004 408,384 3,542 56,129 2,619,616 133206 2,752,822
Additions | 18,340,936 - 3104300 3,626,237 - 1,161,221 26,232,694 - 26,232,694
Transfers 7] (15,874,821) - 14797119 1,077,702 - - - - -
Disposals hE - - (4785715 (1,015,:893) - (472,622) (6,274,230 - (6,274,230
Reclassification EinE - 175,289  (1,204,991) 1,767,903  (490,132) 9,428 257,497 - 257,497
At 31 December 2009 720095 12A31H 5,407,604 179,598,500 166,418,222 3,480,984 - 10,083,105 399,988,415 20,619,703 420,608,118
Accumulated amortisation ~ BiEHRHE
and depreciation:
At 1 January 2008 120081418 - 78933179 77995793 10,982,085 383,060 8,042,079 176,336,176 5391544 181,727,720
Exchange adjustments RaEE - 333808 1906026 1,161,928 - 330329 6,736,369 226570 6,962,939
Charge for the year TEEHE - 7548523 12375401 5034317 - 691931 25,650,172 484819 26,134,991
Written back on disposals HEAD - - (1,165,124)  (251,266) - (1,381,825  (2,798,215) - (2,798,215)
At 31 December 2008 R2008512A31H - 89819788 91,112,096 16,927,044 383,060 7,682,514 205924502 6,102,933 212,027,435
At 1 January 2009 1200951418 - 89,819,788  91,112,09 16,927,044 383,060 7,682,514 205924502 6,102,933 212,027,435
Exchange adjustments okt - 633,796 381,339 251,978 - 51,081 1,318,194 42,330 1,360,524
Charge for the year AEENE - 7,197,129 11474455  5508,072 - 599,019 24,779,575 488,140 25,267,715
Written back on disposals HERD - - (4,037,098)  (873,154) - (#17,513)  (5,327,763) - (5,327,763)
Reclassification Ediprt - (175289)  1,204991  (894,711)  (383,060) (9,428)  (257,497) - (27497)
At 31 December 2009 200912431 - 97475424 100,135,785 20,920,129 - 7905673 226437011 6,633,403 233,070,414
Carrying value: REFE:
At 31 December 2009 20095127318 5407,604 82,123,076 66,282,437 17,560,855 - 2177432 173,551,404 13,986,300 187,537,704
At 31 December 2008 R2008512A31H 2,916,020 88,293,335  62,579409 15,689,607 103530 1,646,435 171228336 14383564 185,611,900
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13 FIXED ASSETS (continued)

13 BEEEE (#)

(b) The Company (b) ZEAH
Furniture,
fixtures and

Plant and equipment Motor

machinery & vehicles Total

EE i RERRE AE a&t

HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B B B B

Cost: A
At 1 January 2008 7200851 A1H 27,127,161 62,600 1,664,320 28,854,081
Additions = - - 759,673 759,673
Disposals HE - - (447,260) (447,260)
At 31 December 2008 720084 12A31H 27,127,161 62,600 1,976,733 29,166,494
At 1 January 2009 20091 A1H 27,127,161 62,600 1,976,733 29,166,494
Additions = - - 558,000 558,000
Disposals & - - (467,060) (467,060)
At 31 December 2009 720094 12 A31H 27,127,161 62,600 2,067,673 29,257,434
Accumulated depreciation: 2 E
At 1 January 2008 #2008 1A1H 12,751,867 39,700 1,150,438 13,942,005
Charge for the year REFHE 3,955,834 4,580 303,901 4,264,315
Written back on disposals HE#D - - (389,307) (389,307)
At 31 December 2008 7200812 A31H 16,707,701 44,280 1,065,032 17,817,013
At 1 January 2009 20091 A1H 16,707,701 44,280 1,065,032 17,817,013
Charge for the year KEFHE 3,769,004 4,580 359,632 4,133,216
Written back on disposals HE# D - - (412,508) (412,508)
At 31 December 2009 7200912 A31H 20,476,705 48,860 1,012,156 21,537,721
Carrying value: BRIE A
At 31 December 2009 F22009F12 A31H 6,650,456 13,740 1,055,517 7,719,713
At 31 December 2008 72200812 A31H 10,419,460 18,320 911,701 11,349,481
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13 FIXED ASSETS (continued)

(c) The analysis of carrying value of
properties is as follows:

13 BEE&EE (#)
(c) MXRFREDHFTWMT :

The Group
AEH
2009 2008
HK$ HK$
B JB MK
Medium-term leases RHATRE
— in Hong Kong — &% 14,299,964 15,190,556
— outside Hong Kong — BB AN 81,809,412 87,486,343
96,109,376 102,676,899
Representing: #RK
Buildings held for own use HEBREEY 82,123,076 88,293,335
Interests in leasehold land held for CEBEREE Rz LR
own use under operating leases 13,986,300 14,383,564
96,109,376 102,676,899

(d) Fixed assets leased out under operating leases

The Group leases out a part of an office premises under
an operating lease. The lease typically runs for an initial
period of one year, with an option to renew the lease
after that date at which time all terms are renegotiated.
The lease does not include any contingent rentals.

The Group’s total future minimum lease payments under
a non-cancellable operating lease are receivable as
follows:

(d) HEEAYzEEEERE

AEEREEHOZRFERE - HOSHNF - 218 A
BRLEBZGTEENEY - ZHOTEERIAHEE -

72 T O R AT 2 S TR E TR R SR 2 BB 2
T -

2009 2008
HK$ HK$
B B
Within 1 year 1F R 60,000 60,000
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14 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 14 HBEQATEDR
The Group
KEHE
2009 2008
HK$ HK$
Share of net assets FEIEEEFE = -
The Group and the Company
AEBRADT
2009 2008
HK$ HK$
Loan and interest receivable from FEUE & AR 2 B RF B

an associate 9,438,646 9,438,646
Less: impairment losses B EERE (9,438,646) (9,438,646)
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14 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

The following are particulars of the associates, which
are unlisted corporate entities and principally affected
the results or assets of the Group:

14 BERQTER (8

Proportion of ownership interest

FARRERL =
Particulars of Group’s
Form of Place of issued and effective Held by Held by a
business incorporation  paid up capital interest the subsidiary Principal
Name of associate  structure and operation EETRK A&E Company HEAF activities
BENRER LERBERN DRREELH BEREZFE BNER  DAREE BE IEEE
Cheung Fung Incorporated ~ Hong Kong 100,000,000 Class A 45.75% - 45.75% Investment holding
Technology B} e (non-voting) shares REER
(Holdings) Limited of HK$0.50 each
(in creditors’ and 200,000,000
voluntary Class B shares of
liquidation) HK$0.50 each
MR (5 8) 100,000,000 AR
BRRA (BERFE) BREY
5£52200,000,000f%
BREREESA
Sichuan Jinfeng Incorporated ~ The PRC Capital of 27.42% - 45.75% Ceased business
Paper Company F RMB208,000,000 HRIEE
Limited BAARE
m)IIREHEERAR 208,000,0007T
Victory Will Limited  Incorporated ~ Hong Kong 12,000,000 Class A 45.75% - 45.75% Investment holding
ALBRAT il s (non-voting) shares REER
of US$1 each and
2 Class B shares of
US$1 each
12,000,000/% A%
(BERZE) BRER
17T R2MRBAR AR
ETAT
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14 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Statements
Bk B MY &F

14 HEQATER (8

Summary financial information on associates BENTMBEEREE
Assets Liabilities Deficit Revenues Loss
BE =R =L 1 WA &8
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BETFT BETTT BEFT BETFT BETFT
2009
100 per cent 100E 7Lt 3,601 (893,229) (889,628) - (334)
Group’s effective interest AN&EE 7 BREZ 1,648 (408,653) (407,005) - (153)
2008
100 per cent 100E Dk 4,479 (882,182)  (877,703) 36,346 (62,541)
Group’s effective interest ZANEEZ BRER 2,049 (403,598)  (401,549) 16,628 (28,613)

In November 2009, Cheung Fung Technology (Holdings)
Limited, which holds the Group’s interests in Sichuan
Jinfeng Paper Company Limited and Victory Will Limited,
commenced creditors’ voluntary liquidation.

The loan and related interest receivable from an
associate amounting to HK$9,438,646 were considered
irrecoverable and full impairment loss was recognised
in the year ended 31 December 2007. The directors
consider that no further recognition of losses is necessary
as the interests in associates are now nil and the Group
has not incurred any legal or constructive obligations
in relation to the associates and will not be required to
make further payments on behalf of the associates.

200911 7 - HERE (£E) BERARFHKEEAR
PSR HEAAREERNT)IRLREERATNILE
[BR AL S -

MR2007F12A31H8 ' ERNEBEERKFEEAEE
9,438,646 L1 1% AT el E - A 72007F12 431 HF
B2 BREE2HEREREEE - BB E Qa2
ERET  EERAEBAE—TIERSE  A5EETER
KBE N REETAERSETEE TR A -
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15 INVESTMENTS IN AND AMOUNTS 15 MEBLARREREW KB AR RE

DUE FROM/TO SUBSIDIARIES

The Company

b NN
2009 2008
HK$ HK$
B JBE B
Unlisted shares, at cost JEETMMD - AR ARR 232,136,898 212,923,030
Less: impairment loss (note) B REEE (M) (780,567) (780,567)
231,356,331 212,142,463
Amounts due from subsidiaries NG E 72,011,972 85,169,757
Less: impairment losses B BRI (49,597,450)  (49,597,450)
22,414,522 35,572,307
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEASB B A A IR X (25,253,075)  (28,002,309)

The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, [EW K EMHBERRERHEERR @ RERIZFEEE -

interest free and repayable on demand.

Note: The Company has recognised an impairment loss on an  f/77 : RNARANFRAFHHIBRRIEEERBMEEIE B
investment in a subsidiary amounting to HK$780,567 in 780,5677C * Z B A R IETE R BT SHETTH ©

the current and previous year. The subsidiary is in the
process of applying for deregistration.

02  RAYMOND Industrial Ltd. F|RE%£ERAF




15 INVESTMENTS |
DUE FROM/TO SU

(continued)

The following list contains only the particulars of
subsidiaries which principally affected the results, assets

NA
B

N
S

IES

D AMOUNTS 15
IDIAR

or liabilities of the Group. The class of shares held is
ordinary unless otherwise stated.

Notes to the Financial Statements
Bk B MY &F

Bﬁ DEREREWR FHE R BIRE

%
E

TEAEEEE BERAR
%%lJﬁIJEd P E 2 e A E AR -

BEZHE

Proportion of ownership interest

u$| ZZD—F . ﬁ/%

EeL 1 -l
Particulars of Group’s
issued and effective Held by a
Place of Place of pald up capital interest  Held by the  subsidiar Principal
Name of company inco;goration operation ££8  Company WEAF  activities
RAER e s g %EH&‘ZFZ#F BXER RARKE BE IEEH
Airborne Holdings British Virgin Hong Kong 1 share of US$1 100% 100% - Investment holding
Limited _Islands &% IREBRFRIZT RERR
ZBRKE
Appliance Science United States of ~ United States of 958,500 shares of 83.51% - 83.51% Inactive
Corporation America America US$0.01 each mE¥
X8 X 958,500/ % @R
B
Good Nature Company Hong Kong Hong Kong 2 shares of 100% 50% 50%  Inactive
 Limited i i HK$10 each BEX
BEERAT] 2REBRGHR
1047
Good Nature Cook Islands Hong Kong 8 shares of 100% 100% - Investment holding
International Limited SRBE B US$1each RERR
SREBRERIZT
Guangzhou Conquest The PRC The PRC Registered capital 100% 100% - Manufacture and
Electric Company i i  US§7,390,000 sale of electrical
Limited (note (i)) dMEx home g@phances
BNRIKAEE 7,390,000% T BUERH
BRRR (i) L
Mass Top Corporation British Virgin Hong Kong 1 share of US$1 100% 100% = Prgépert% holding
_ Islands & 1REBRERIET REY
RERAE
Raymond Electric (China)  Hong Kong Hong Kong 2 shares of HK$10 100% 100% - Trading of
Limited &k Bl 2REBREGHR0 electrical home
MEBHEE i gllances
(FB) BRATF E585
Raymond International British Virgin The PRC 10 shares of 100% 100% = Inactlve
Marketing _ Islands H US$1 each B2X
Corporation (note (i) ~ EEEZS 10 S BRER
(/Wuf(//)) 1%75
Raymond Marketing United States of  United States of 1,000 shares of 100% 100% - Inactive
Corporation of America America US$1 each mEX
North America *E 1 OOOHx il
x1%7£
Raymond (Panyu Nansha) ~ The PRC The PRC Registered capital 100% 100% - Manufacture and
Electrical Appliances i i _ US$22,380,000 sale of
Development Company HMEA B electrical home
Limited (note (i) 22,380,000% T A[JE;ances
ME (REED) SRER 2
BRRA (i) “xmes
Raymond Nansha British Virgin The PRC 2 shares of 100% 100% - Pr%\per% holding
Development Co. Ltd. Islands i US§1each REW
RERXE SrEBRERIXT
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15 INVESTMENTS IN AND AMOUNTS 15 MEARREREWR KB BRE
DUE FROM/TO SUBSIDIARIES (%)

(continued)

Note: Ktat -

(i) The financial statements of Guangzhou Conquest (i) BNRIFRAEREARAFALIR (FEEmMY) EREE
Electric Company Limited and Raymond (Panyu BRAREZE2009F12A318 IE 2 FEMEHRKILEF
Nansha) Electrical Appliances Development Company FESFAIGRS] - BAEREMNES S EBEARARS
Limited for the financial year ended 31 December % o
2009, prepared under generally accepted accounting
principles applicable in the PRC, have been audited by
BMNEHSHMEBAER AR

(i) Raymond International Marketing Corporation has  (ii) Raymond International Marketing Corporation 2 4 5 #&
ceased business operations and is in the process of BEE L BPFERIEEMEETS - RUMBRER - BE
applying for deregistration. At the date of approval of AR
these financial statements, the deregistration has not
been completed.

16 INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET 16 REESBERNAEH

(a) Current taxation in the balance sheet (a) EEEBRZBH
represents

The Group The Company
A% ADT
2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B JBH B B
Provision for the year NEFEE
(note 7(a)) (Hi:E7(a))
- Hong Kong Profits Tax — BBMEH 105,055 144,906 - -
- PRC Enterprise — PEFSH
Income Tax 1,358,988 340,999 - -
1,464,043 485,905 - =
Provisional tax paid BB
- Hong Kong Profits Tax — BBMEH (144,907)  (8,368,803) - (8,244,295)
— PRC Enterprise — BT EY
Income Tax (187,054) = = =
(331,961)  (8,368,803) - (8,244,295)
1,132,082 (7,882,898) - (8,244,295)
Balance of profits tax TEEMEH
provision relating to B iatrgE
prior years (6,541,395) - (6,541,395) -
Tax recoverable AR [ 18 (5,409,313) (7,882,898)  (6,541,395)  (8,244,295)
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16 INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE
SHEET (continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:

to the Financial Statements

A B M &E

16 REESB/BRWAEHR (&

(b) CRAEEHBREEREME:

The Group The Company
rEE b NN
2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B BB B BB
Net deferred tax assets REEBBRROHR
recognised on ZIEERIEE E
the balance sheet (6,672,459) (5,727,623) - -
Net deferred tax liabilities REEABERDHER
recognised on ZIRERIEE B
the balance sheet 165,186 2,411,225 148,242 2,153,992
(6,507,273)  (3,316,398) 148,242 2,153,992
(i) The Group (i) KEE
The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilites AFERGEEEABREFEDRRIELRE (BE),/

recognised in the consolidated balance sheet and the

movements during the year are as follows:

Depreciation

allowances
in excess of
the related Other
depreciation temporary
Deferred tax arising from: Tax loss WEEEZ differences Total
BLEzEEH: BIEEE REBITE HtETEER &%t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B B B B
At 1 January 2008 720081 H1H (357,802) 2,219,031 (2,771,329) (910,100)
Effect of a change in RpEg oo
exchange rate = - (149,639) (149,639)
Credited to profit or loss TER TSk EE 25 A (169,154) (263,072)  (1,824,433)  (2,256,659)
At 31 December 2008 12008F12H31H (526,956) 1,955,959 (4,745,401) (3,316,398)
At 1 January 2009 M2009F1A1H (526,956) 1,955,959 (4,745,401) (3,316,398)
Effect of a change in b ol 7
exchange rate (1,828) - (41,640) (43,468)
Charged/(credited) to R Tk EE 2
profit or loss il A E DN 254,317 (1,974,321) (1,427,403) (3,147,407)
At 31 December 2009 7200945128318 (274,467) (18,362)  (6,214,444)  (6,507,273)
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16 INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE
SHEET (continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:

(continued)
(i) The Group (continued)
Deferred tax assets not recognised/reversed:

At 31 December 2009, the Group has not recognised
deferred tax assets in respect of cumulative tax losses
of HK$1,080,000 (2008: HK$20,380,000) as they are
(i) subject to the approval of the Hong Kong Inland
Revenue Department; and/or (ii) it is not probable that
future taxable profits against which the losses can be
utilised will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction
and entity. The tax losses have no expiry date under the
current tax legislation.

At 31 December 2009, the Group has not reversed
insignificant deferred tax assets relating to temporary
differences of HK$168,750 (2008: HK$Nil).

Deferred tax liabilities not recognised:

At 31 December 2009, the Group has not recognised
insignificant net deferred tax liabilities relating to
temporary differences of HK$Nil (2008: HK$307,000).

(ii) The Company

The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised in
the balance sheet arise from depreciation allowances
in excess of the related depreciation. The movements
during the year are as follows:

16 REEE/RNAEBHR (@)

(b) CEIECEHHEEERKE: (B)

(i) AEE (&)

RERZBELERBEE

M2009F12H31H » AREBERE)EL B B BRI E
(i) RAEET KRB E B R R M T LA 8548 B T 75 14
FANERMEBEE CREEE  WABERBIFEEBE
1,080,0007T (20084 : & #20,380,0007T) ~ &L &
E o RIBBRIFE - ZARERNG/BELEAR -

R2009F12A31H  AEEERECEEZEMABREEAX
TR ZRLEHIEEE FE P ¥168,7507T (20084
=) o

FERZBELEREARE

R2009F12A31H  AEEREHEZEMABRESER
TR RN IE A G FELE (20084F : 307,000
JC) °

(i) ARE]

AEERGREEARBETERRAZELEHRAENA
RERBFTEEMANERTEREES 2FEBWT :

2009 2008
HK$ HK$
B JBEBE
At 1 January w1 A1H 2,153,992 2,431,680
Credited to profit or loss 1w Ak EE Pt A (2,005,750) (277,688)
At 31 December M12A31H 148,242 2,153,992

06  RAYMOND Industrial Ltd. 7R % %5 RE A
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Notes to the Financial Statements

16 INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE
SHEET (continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:
(continued)

(ii) The Company (continued)
Deferred tax assets not recognised:

At 31 December 2009, the Company has not recognised
deferred tax assets in respect of cumulative tax losses
of HK$1,045,000 (2008: HK$20,346,000) as they are
subject to the approval of the Hong Kong Inland Revenue
Department.

Deferred tax liabilities not reversed:

At 31 December 2009, the Company has not reversed
deferred tax liabilities in respect of temporary differences
of HK$Nil (2008: HK$1,928,000) as it is probable
that these taxable differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

R B B &

16 REEAB/BRHOAEHR ()
(b) EBRBETHEALERAME: (8)

(i)  Ana] (E)

RERZELERHBEE

R2009F12A31H * ARBI AR ZEEREESREA
B BB B it A8 B8 B 7% /5 18 75 5 1,045,0007T (2008
& #120,346,0007T) °

REIEZELEHRBERE

R2009F 128318 + AR &) F 52 & 2= £ i A< [0 # 15k E 5
158 &8 (20084 : & %1,928,0007T) M fE Al B #5 3k
B TE = B RRE O -

17 INVENTORIES 17 #E
The Group The Company
TEE ¥ NN

2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Raw materials R 61,369,822 55,252,204 1,236,991 8,227,217
Work in progress e 36,181,987 32,793,045 36,037 3,395,823
Finished goods B 4,861 53 = -
97,556,670 88,045,302 1,273,028 11,623,040
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17 INVENTORIES (continued) 17 H®E @&

The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as FESB2OMCHRAERNT
an expense is as follows:

The Group
rEE

2009 2008

HK$ HK$

B JBE B
Carrying amount of inventories sold FEHEEEREE 735,551,489 676,638,402
Write down of inventories FERE 4,154,028 6,748,226
Reversal of write-down of inventories FERIER # (3,340,568) (1,080,726)

736,364,949 682,305,902

18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18 EZRHEHMEWIRE

The Group The Company
rEH ¥ NN
2009 2008 2009 2008
HKS$ HK$ HKS$ HK$
Trade debtors BoEBA 120,654,173 70,120,027 113,549,372 66,198,701
Other debtors HMEBA 5,956,933 4,487,807 3,165,154 2,757,761
Deposits and prepayments IS EECE 6,431,343 1,973,329 41,900 41,900

133,042,449 76,581,163 116,756,426 68,998,362

All of the trade and other receivables are expected to be FTEE S R EMEWARIBHM FAR MBI KERLSER -
recovered or recognised as expense within one year.

08  RAYMOND Industrial Ltd. F|RE%£ER AT
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A B M &E

18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18 ESZRHMEWRE (&)
(continued)
(a) Ageing analysis (a) BRERSDHT

Included in trade and other receivables are trade debtors
with the following ageing analysis as of the balance
sheet date:

REERBRGEEAEREZ RAMBYRERAREHER
AR Z BRI DOMTIAE -

The Group The Company
rEE ¥ NN

2009 2008 2009 2008

HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Current NER 105,732,467 47,252,346 98,627,666 43,331,020
Less than 1 month past due BEDRE A 9,183,315 15,172,592 9,183,315 15,172,592
1 to 3 months past due wmEA1{E B =3 A 4,120,383 6,007,829 4,120,383 6,007,829

More than 3 months but B AR ASE A B DR

less than 12 months past due 1218 A 1,618,008 1,286,106 1,618,008 1,286,106
Over 12 months past due B HRERA 1218 A - 401,154 - 401,154
Amounts past due BT EE 14,921,706 22,867,681 14,921,706 22,867,681
120,654,173 70,120,027 113,549,372 66,198,701

Trade debtors are due within 30 to 60 days from the date
of billing. Further details on the Group’s credit policy are
set out in note 26(a).

(b) Impairment of trade and other receivables
Impairment losses are written off against trade and
other receivables when recovery of the amount is
remote (see note 2(g)(i)). At 31 December 2009, the
Group’s trade and other receivables of HK$Nil (2008:
HK$5,486,835) were determined to be impaired. The
impairment is written off directly against the trade and
other receivables.

ZHEBARERZEHEI0E60KANENE - REBZ(Z
EBURFHE N E26(a)

(b) ECRBEZEZEHKARHEMEWKRIRE

EA e BRE R A EREEGME  E5REMEK
8R 18 & 5 B MR (R M 5£2(g) (i) - % 200912831 H
AREBZE S REMEWRBRMESE (2008F : B
5,486,83570) - MEREEE 5 M EMEKREEIAF MR -
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R B K&

18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(continued)
(c) Trade debtors that are not impaired
The ageing analysis of trade debtors that are neither

individually nor collectively considered to be impaired
are as follows:

18 EZREMEWIRE (&)

(c) REBEZEZEBEBA

BHEBAZRE TR B R DX EREDT

The Group The Company
AEH AATF
2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Neither past due nor impaired R B EISORE 105,732,467 47,252,346 98,627,666 43,331,020
Less than 1 month past due B AR E A 9,183,315 15,172,592 9,183,315 15,172,592
1 to 3 months past due BHE A Z3E A 4,120,383 6,007,829 4,120,383 6,007,829
More than 3 months but mERIB3E A E LR

less than 12 months past due 121E A 1,618,008 1,286,106 1,618,008 1,286,106
Over 12 months past due BHAERA12{E A - 401,154 - 401,154
Amounts past due BHEE 5 14,921,706 22,867,681 14,921,706 22,867,681
120,654,173 70,120,027 113,549,372 66,198,701

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a wide range of customers for whom there was
no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has
not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are considered fully recoverable. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.

100 RAYMOND Industrial Ltd. 7| & £AE A7)
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A B M &E

19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 19 RekFALEZEEH
The Group The Company
rEH RAF]
2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS$
B JE B JE
Bank deposits RITEEIE 77,512,056 128,539,570 77,512,056 117,204,570
Cash at bank and in hand RITEREBRE 97,890,828 87,386,060 47,421,938 37,050,343
175,402,884 215,925,630 124,933,994 154,254,913
20 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 20 BEZRHMENIRE
The Group The Company
rEE RAF]
2009 2008 2009 2008
HKS$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Trade creditors BIEREA 84,174,595 54,457,870 63,936,629 41,121,319
Accrued charges and ERERR
other payables H - BR TR 34,127,820 31,459,841 8,390,442 11,839,989
118,302,415 85,917,711 72,327,071 52,961,308

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be

EE S REMEBNREMFAINRRERMNE - R

settled within one year or are repayable on demand. BEBEXREER  BHEESLHEMENEKRETNESE
Included in trade and other payables are trade creditors A ZRE DT :

with the following ageing analysis as of the balance

sheet date:
The Group The Company
rEE RAF]
2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B B B BB
Due within 1 month or 18 B R EIEAS IR Bk
on demand 81,688,175 53,466,992 63,386,440 41,017,150
Due after 1 month but 1B A &B3EA K
within 3 months gl 1,764,805 603,844 550,189 6,137
Due after 3 months but 3fEA%E12EAR
within 12 months Eall):id 526,906 131,420 - 98,032
Due after 12 months 1218 A 1& 2| 53 194,709 255,614 - =
84,174,595 54,457,870 63,936,629 41,121,319
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21 DEFINED CONTRIBUTION
RETIREMENT PLANS

The Group operates the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The scheme is
administered by an independent trustee.

Under the MPF Scheme, each of the Group and the
eligible employees make monthly mandatory contributions
to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income
as defined under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance. The mandatory contributions by each party
are subject to a maximum of HK$1,000 per month.
Contributions to the scheme vest immediately upon the
completion of service in the relevant service period.

In addition to the MPF Scheme, the employees of the
Group’s subsidiaries in Hong Kong, after completing
half a year of service, have the option to join the
Group’s defined contribution provident fund scheme
which is managed by an independent trustee. The
Group makes monthly contributions of 5% — 10% of the
employees’ basic salaries to the scheme depending on
the employees’ years of service with the Group. The
employees also make monthly contributions of 5% of the
employees’ basic salaries to the scheme. The employees
are entitled to receive their entire contributions together
with accrued interest thereon at any time upon leaving
the Group, and 100% of the employer’s contributions and
the accrued interest upon retirement or leaving the Group
after completing sixteen years of service or at a reducing
scale of between 5% to 90% after completing three
to fifteen years of service. The forfeited contributions
made by the Group and related accrued interest can be
used to reduce the employer’s contributions. During the
year, the aggregate amount of employer’s contributions
made by the Group to this scheme was approximately
HK$417,480 (2008: HK$450,870). During the vyear,
the total amount of forfeited contributions, which are
available to reduce the contributions payable by the
Group in future years, was approximately HK$Nil (2008:
HK$669,000). At 31 December 2009, the Group’s
contributions to the provident fund scheme and the
interest accrued thereon amounted to approximately
HK$12,088,000 (2008: HK$11,038,000).
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21 REMHKERAKGE

AEBRBERVEATBSHA GO SRET B RBIED
ALAENREZ B REBRMRHIEATRSE (T8BES
FHEl]) - R BmB U ERESERE

RIBBRESFE - AREREAEREEHEREEHE
REDFBGIZRE  BARREAEFE5%RRTE
TEFEIHEK - BAF S ZEEDRERBIMEQATRE S B/
pimat & - €K LR A% AE%K1,0007T - FIAH
RILARAG R B AR BT

BEiigEe:tE AEBEEEWNBAREIERALE
TEmANER%  ATEREMARNEEZIEZBYEEAA
EBZAEEHE - AEEIZRBETIFENF EFTIE5%E
10%1EB AR MEB TAIEEH STIR5%EAE T
M BETHBE ZEIKURLEESHE T HiE
FEETFIE RIZFETE MBI QA REIERS « LIT{Emt
ANEEH BHUREE2HEARER MIER=F=2+AF
& AJEE 2 A AR AR5%E90%t & - B T BEEE
Rz AR EF B AEBRII AR < HR - XEE
N E 7 R4 7B 417,480 (20084 : 4 #5450,870
T0) o ARFEQ UG FGEF B M Al FE R F 2 AN E A
Mk 2z BEE 4 A% (20084 : E#669,0007T) ° 12009
F12A3MBAEBEHABSFEEL 2 HAREFEREFLD
A7512,088,0007T (20084 : B#11,038,0007T) °
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Notes to the financial statements

21 DEFINED CONTRIBUTION
RETIREMENT PLANS (continued)

At 31 December 2009, certain employees of the Group
had completed the required number of years of service
under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance (the
“Ordinance”) and are eligible for long service payments
on termination of their employment. The Group is only
liable to make such payments when the termination
meets the required circumstances specified in the
Ordinance and the employees’ entitlement is not covered
by the aforesaid provident funds. At 31 December 2009,
the Group’s contributions to the provident funds and
the accrued interest thereon exceeded the potential
liabilities should the required circumstances specified
in the Ordinance be met.

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC also participate
in defined contribution retirement schemes covering its
full-time PRC employees. The schemes are administered
by the relevant government authorities in the PRC.
The Group and the PRC employees are required to
make contributions based on certain percentages of
the applicable payroll costs as stipulated under the
requirements in the PRC and the relevant government
authorities undertake to assume the retirement benefit
obligations of all existing and future retired employees
of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC.

22 BANKING FACILITIES

As at 31 December 2009, the Group had unsecured
revolving banking facilities of HK$60,150,000 (2008:
HK$160,150,000). The banking facilities include
documentary letters of credit, trust receipt, bill payables,
trade loans and trade guarantee. The amount utilised by
the Group as at 31 December 2009 under these facilities
was HK$1,606,832 (2008: HK$593,820).

A B M &E

21 REHRFCRNKETE (50

f£2009F12A31H ' AEBENHHE THREFHE =
EEBEBEL (TEH)) MRE  FEEAHTEER
ZERRBSS  AMEHEOIEEZBET  AEBAE
Nrz8mEAZEIABSZERETEXNERBRGE S
MZEF - HATEFEULIES 2 8 TR - AL ER2009F
12A31BERAESHERRTFZHREZRERREZE
AfE -

AEBETENMNBARRTEATEBRANZRE TRUE
KRGS - WA BIX P BB ARMAEE - AEB X
BETFRUFAIRESREBEF S —EANLIEHH
K MBBRAAEAEASBEETENMNB AR 28R
BRRFEARE T2 RREHEE -

22 HRITEEEE

f£2009F12A31H ' AEEMIRTESZEEKAEE
R %) /75 #60,150,0007T (20084 : 7% %160,150,000
TL) o MITZEEBENANERTL - EE8E - BRE
B ZE5ERNRESER AKHCHAEEEEHNABE
1,606,832 T (20084 : j5%593,8207T) °
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23 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has a share option scheme which was
adopted on 6 June 2003 whereby the directors of the
Company are authorised, at their discretion, to invite
(i) directors, employees of any member of the Group or
any controlling shareholder of the Company (“Controlling
Shareholder”) or any company controlled by a Controlling
Shareholder; (ii) holder of any securities issued by any
member of the Group or any Controlling Shareholder of
the Company or any company controlled by a Controlling
Shareholder; and (iii) (a) any business or joint venture
partner, contractor, agent or representative of, (b) any
supplier of goods or services to, or (c) any customer or
distributor of goods or service of, any member of the
Group or any Controlling Shareholder or a company
controlled by a Controlling Shareholder; to take up
options to subscribe for shares of the Company. A
nominal consideration of HK$1.00 is paid by these
participants for each lot of share options granted. The
options are exercisable from the date of grant within
a period of eight to ten years. Each option gives the
holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary share in
the Company.

(a) The terms and conditions of the grants that
existed during the year are as follows, whereby
all options are settled by physical delivery of

23 REREAURGHERIEFE

ARRAN2003F6 A6H R BIREE - ARREFE
EREBERERT()VASEEMKE RARSARE 22K
PR ([ERRR]) IERRRMEH 2 AR CES &
B (NSEAKEEMKE « 5 BRRR ST AR 5
ZRRAETZEMERZFEA - R(ii)(a)E R EH K
BIERH A ERE  KERRE  (b)EAIEmIRABEH
&R ()T, kD HR - JIARKEEAINK S Sz
PR ER ok PR AR R AE I 2 (B A B ¢ (TR AR
At - 2T ALTUBEBIT ZRBUNRBES —HE
Pt o BERETTERHIR 2R BREF8E105FR - B1EK
B RHBEAZENRBBEARR BB BERRE

(a) HEAFERTZERMAT - HUtFABREER
RN Z BREE L -

shares:
Contractual
Number of life of options
instruments B
IRg=E RHNFH
Options granted to directors: HERERTES
—on 21 June 2005 — 7A2005F6 A21H 10,660,000 8 years®
—on 30 June 2008 — 7A2008F6 A30H 23,461,488 10 years
— on 6 October 2009 — 1200910 H6H 18,901,488 10 years®
Options granted to employees: BREXTES
—on 21 June 2005 — 1200546 A21H 6,371,000 8 years®
— on 30 June 2008 — 1200846 H30H 9,830,000 10 yearst
— on 6 October 2009 — 120094 10A6H 16,085,000 10 years
Options granted to other eligible persons: FERRER TAEMR AT :
—on 21 June 2005 — 12200546 A21H 770,000 8 years
— on 30 June 2008 — 7200846 H30H 6,095,000 10 years®
— on 6 October 2009 — 120094 10H6H 4,400,000 10 years
Total share options 4R AR R 96,573,976
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23 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED

TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) The number and weighted average exercise prices
of share options are as follows:

A B M &E

23 RHEAUROGHEREFR (8)

(b) BREZHBERNEFOITEENAT

2009 2008
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number of exercise Number of
price options price options
In#EEH BB T fEAR
THEE ZHE 178 ZHE
HK$ ‘000 HK$ 000
B TR B T
Outstanding at the FHRTHE
beginning of the year 0.955 40,551 2.425 1,215
Granted during the year REZHRT 0.630 39,386 0.910 39,386
Exercised during the year ZAREE1T{$ 0.630 (320) = =
Forfeited during the year  RFEF Lk 0.879 (910) 0.910 (50)
Outstanding at the end REEZ IEARITEE
of the year 0.795 78,707 0.955 40,551
Exercisable at the end NEE IEATIT{E
of the year 0.795 78,707 0.955 40,551

The options outstanding at 31 December 2009 had an
exercise price of HK$0.630, HK$0.910 and HK$2.425
(2008: HK$0.910 and HK$2.425) and a weighted
average remaining contractual life of 8.9 years (2008:
9.4 years).

(c) Fair value of share options and
assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share
options granted is measured by reference to the fair
value of share options granted. The estimate of the fair
value of the share options granted is measured based on
a Black Scholes model. The contractual life of the share
option is used as an input into this model. Expectations
of early exercise are incorporated into the Black Scholes
model.

72009F12 431 A KT BE iR #E 2 1T (£ {8 & %5 #0.630
JC 75 #0.9107T K 78 #2.4257T (20084 : 75 #0.9107C
K& #2.42570) R INKEFH & T R4 F H,:28.99F (2008
1 9.44) o

(c) BREZAFERER

B ME X 2 R 2 X FETIZZ MR BRE
RFEMFE - ARG ERE 2 AR A FEDIZEHEN
B BREZANFHNERKEBEEAZB A - AH
RETENERNEHRELN -
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23 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(c) Fair value of share options and
assumptions (continued)

Fair value of share options and assumptions:

23 HEZEMUBRGCAERIER (&)

(c) BREZAVERRER (B)

Bz ATEREBR

Date of grant

Fair value at measurement date REtERBZ AFE
Share price KB
Exercise price 1768

Expected volatility (expressed as
weighted average volatility used
in the modelling under the
Black Scholes model)

Option life (expressed as weighted
average volatility used in the
modelling under the Black
Scholes model)

Expected dividends

Risk-free interest rate

TBEARR S
42 [ a1 2

RERIE (AREHERABT
REFA I KIERT)

BRESH (AEHEAET
RE TR KRR )

B¥BEH
21 June 2005 30 June 2008 6 October 2009
2005%6H21H 2008%F6H30H 2009%1086H
HK$0.3884/% 7T HK$0.13685/87C HK$0.11295/8 7T
HK$2.40007% 7T HK$0.900007% 7T HK$0.61000/%5 7T
HK$2.42507% 7T HK$0.910007% 7T HK$0.63000/%5 7T
8.46% 36.94% 44.579%
2 yearsF 3 years®F 3 years®F
6.80% 6.67% 8.20%
3.28% 2.87% 0.931%

The expected volatility is based on the historical volatility
(calculated based on the weighted average remaining
life of the share options), adjusted for any expected
changes to future volatility based on publicly available
information. Expected dividends are based on historical
dividends. Changes in the subjective input assumptions
could materially affect the fair value estimate.

There was no market conditions associated with the
share option grants.
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Notes to the financial statements

24
DIVIDENDS

(a) Movements in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances of each component of the Group’s consolidated

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND

24

(a)

AEBGAERNE
R BN GEER

44

BEX - HEkkRE

ESAEAKBONEE

A B M &E

118 48 A 8 40 B HA 170 0 HA K 48 5 10
R o TREHARFHER A

equity is set out in the consolidated statement of changes X015 G FI B F R E BN 15 -
in equity. Details of the changes in the Company’s
individual components of equity between the beginning
and the end of the year are set out below:
The Company b YN
Share Share Retained Capital Total
capital premium earnings reserve equity
R BRARE REER BB CHIE i
Note HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
i3 BE B BE BE B
At 1 January 2008 20081818 196,932,442 179,749,234 157,597,754 47,168 534,326,598
Charges in equity in 2008: 2008 EZ% 5
Dividends approved BHAERE
in respect of the
— previous year —F 24(b) - - (82,711,625) - (82,711,625)
— current year - KE 24(b) - - (19,693,244) - (19,693,244)
Equity-settled share-based BERERARS
transactions AEWIER - - - 5,390,041 5,390,041
Cancellation of share options BB ik i = = = (6,842) (6,842)
Total comprehensive loss AEEHEERRRE
for the year - - (19,757,649) - (19,757,649)
At 31 December 2008 and ~ A2008512A31A R
1 January 2009 2009F1A1H 196,932,442 179,749,234 35,435,236 5,430,367 417,547,279
Changes in equity for 2009: 2009 &8 :
Dividends approved in respect 7 # RS
of the previous year 24(b) - - (19,693,244) - (19,693,244)
Shares issued under share  BERRIED 217 2 %7
option scheme
— gross proceeds — ElE 160,000 41,600 - - 201,600
- transfer from capital reserve — MEA K HER - 36,144 - (36,144) -
Equity-settled share-based ~ HEZ(E LAR (D
transactions AEMIER - - - 2,368,109 2,368,109
Cancellation of share options ~ EUjHEE L 12 - - - (104,006) (104,006)
Total comprehensive income ~ AE2E AT
for the year - - 11,597,651 - 11,597,651
At 31 December 2009 #2009%12831H 197,092,442 179,826,978 27,339,643 7,658,326 411,917,389
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24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND 24 EBEXR- FERRE (&)
DIVIDENDS (continued)

(b) Dividends by RE

(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (i)  AFZF@EFRE BN Al F ML
Company attributable to the year

2009 2008
HK$ HK$
Interim dividend declared and paid of EEIRZFHRE
Nil HK cents per ordinary share BREARBEZTW
(2008: 5 HK cents per ordinary share) (20084 : AR EBAEHESL) - 19,693,244
Final dividend proposed after the REEBBEXREEREZEZTIR
balance sheet date of 4 HK cents NEAR SR E BB 4L
per ordinary share (20084 : BAREBMAREHESIL)
(2008: 5 HK cent per ordinary share) 15,767,395 19,693,244

15,767,395 39,386,488

The final dividend proposed after the balance sheet REEBEXRGEHAREZZERARABRERFRIKENE
date has not been recognised in liabilities at the balance EEBBEXREEARERRAEE -
sheet date.

(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (i)  REFEEMNKEERL AR EWL RIERFEE
Company attributable to the previous financial HERZT

year, approved and paid during the year

2009 2008
HK$ HK$
B B
Final dividend in respect of the previous FEEREEERFEZDHER
financial year, approved and paid during Sz~ &A% & 38 %8 #5511
the year, of 5 HK cents per ordinary share (20084 : &% & i@ AX & #111l)
(2008: 1 HK cents per ordinary share) 19,693,244 3,938,648
Special dividend in respect of EFEFIRBERFED AR
the previous financial year, approved SENEST SR =l
and paid during the year, of Nil HK cents (20084F : & f% & @ A% & #2011
per ordinary share (2008: 20 HK cents
per ordinary share) - 78,772,977

19,693,244 82,711,625
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24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND
DIVIDENDS (continued)

(c) Share capital

(i) Authorised and issued share capital

A B M &E

24 EBXR- BERRE (@)

(c) KR

(i) ZEREEFITRE

2009 2008
Number of Number of
shares HK$ shares HK$
REZE BE g = B
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.50 each GREERAL AR 1,000,000,000 500,000,000 1,000,000,000 500,000,000
Ordinary shares, issued and ZER CDRTRAR:
fully paid:
At 1 January WM A1H 393,864,884 196,932,442 393,864,884 196,932,442
Share issued under share fef e Sl ]
option scheme 320,000 160,000 - -
At 31 December M™M2A31H 394,184,884 197,092,442 393,864,884 196,932,442

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled
to one vote per share at meetings of the Company.
All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the
Company’s residual assets.

(i) Shares issued under share option scheme

In December 2009, 320,000 options were exercised
to subscribe for 320,000 ordinary shares in the
Company at a total consideration of HK$201,600 of
which HK$160,000 was credited to share capital and
the balance of HK$41,600 was credited to the share
premium account. HK$36,144 has been transferred from
the capital reserve to the share premium account in
accordance with the policy set out in note 2(l)(ii).

TR EABRTRHRBAEIRNKE - AHERARE
e LRER-—FERERR - METEREAEBERIER
BENEARSHA -

(i)  BREZEITZKG

200912 8 » RAR R4 EE 201,600 7T B
1 % B.320,0000% & i@ A% -+ E % #160,0007T 51 A BE A
MR EE S 41,600 AT AR AR & o 2T FE2(1) (i) < B 2R
EH36,144 TR AR EEB ERARE -

Annual Report 2009 4§ 109



g - i RN ) TR e

Notes to the financial statements
AR B Bt

|:IE|I_I,:

24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND 24 EBEX-FERRE (&)

DIVIDENDS (continued)
B (5)

(c) Share capital (continued) (c)

REERBXRERE AR RAITIEABRAE

(iii)  Terms of unexpired and unexercised share (iii)
options at balance sheet date

Exercise 2009 2008
Exercise period price Number Number
TR THEE BE He
21 June 2005 to 20056 H21HZE HK$2.425
5 June 2013 20136 H5H 72 4257T 1,215,000 1,215,000
30 June 2008 to 200856 H30H & HK$0.910
29 June 2018 20186 H29H 7&10.9107T 38,526,488 39,336,488
6 October 2009 to 2009 10H6HE HK$0.630
5 October 2019 20194 10H5H 7&%0.6307C 38,966,488 =
78,707,976 40,551,488

Each option entitles the holder to subscribe for one
ordinary share in the Company. Further details of these
options are set out in note 23.

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i) Share premium reserve

The application of the share premium account is
governed by Section 48B of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

(i) Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt

with in accordance with accounting policies set out in
note 2(p).
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(i)  RAZERE

BB LAIGPIEA8HBEEMEA <R EERE -
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24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND
DIVIDENDS (continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(iii)  Capital reserve

The capital reserve comprises the fair value of the
actual or estimated number of unexercised share
options granted to employees of the Company and other
eligible persons recognised in the accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for share-based payments in
note 2(1)(ii).

(iv)  PRC statutory reserve

Pursuant to the laws and regulations governing the PRC
enterprises, certain of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries,
which are wholly foreign-owned enterprises, are required
to allocate at least 10% of their after-tax profit but
before dividend distribution to a general reserve until
the reserve has reached 50% of their registered capital.
The general reserve can only be used, upon approval by
the relevant authority, to offset accumulated losses or
increase capital. Appropriation to general reserve during
the year amounted to approximately HK$350,000 (2008:
HK$1,626,000).

The enterprise expansion fund can only be used to
increase capital upon approval by the relevant authority.
Appropriation to the enterprise expansion fund is at
the discretion of the board of directors of the PRC
subsidiaries. There was no appropriation during the year
(2008: HK$Nil).

The staff welfare and bonus fund can only be used
for the welfare of the PRC subsidiaries’ employees.
Appropriation to the staff welfare and bonus fund is
at the discretion of the board of directors of the PRC
subsidiaries. For Hong Kong reporting purposes, this
appropriation is charged to expenses and included
in creditors and accrued charges in the consolidated
financial statements.

A B M &E

24 EBEX-FERKRE (&)
(d) BEZMHEREH ()
(i) B fEE

B R G 6 B TR AR IR & St R B R 2(1) (1) 2R 40 DA B AR 5 2Lt
BRI AaEENEMABEBALTZEERMEFRITEER
RBEN N FERER

(iv)  HPELERE

KBRPEAREMB ZEZERREHEE 2 ERK - AER
ZHENBARBIIEBEELE ALK D10%D 2 FHiE
BASMEEBREE EEZREBETMELRNS0%E
It TEFEFERAVCEBRE BILERNIKEREEENIE
MER - REEHEE L BFHEZEEAL AE 350,000
JC (20084 : /&#1,626,0007T) °

CEREZERESRAVUEEHE RILERAIBIMER - DECE
CEBRRES 2 BFAZETEMNBARZEERBITR
T o NERILZA DB (20084 : ) o

BIRMNMEAESRAEZTEMNBERARE T 2R
e DERBBIRANMEARES 2 BRHZETENER
AIZESRBITRE - REEREMTE - ZRKENES
MHmETIHER - RN RBERETIER °
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24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND
DIVIDENDS (continued)

(e) Distributability of reserves

At 31 December 2009, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to equity shareholders of the
Company was HK$27,339,643 (2008: HK$35,435,236).
After the balance sheet date the directors proposed
a final dividend of 4 HK cents per ordinary share
(2008: a final dividend of 5 HK cent per ordinary share)
amounting to HK$15,767,395 (2008: final dividend of
HK$19,693,244). This dividend has not been recognised
as a liability at the balance sheet date.

(f) Capital management

The Group’s primarily objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns
for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders,
by pricing products and services commensurately with
the level of risk and by securing access to finance at a
reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between the
higher shareholder returns and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
judgements to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors its
capital structure on the basis of a net debt-to-adjusted
capital ratio. For this purpose the Group defines net debt
as total debt (which includes trade and other payables)
plus unaccrued proposed dividends. Adjusted capital
comprises all components of equity less unaccrued
proposed dividends.

During 2009, the Group’s strategy, which was unchanged
from 2008, was to maintain the net debt-to-adjusted
capital ratio of no more than 29% (2008: 22%). In order
to maintain or adjust the ratio, the Group may adjust the
amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new
shares, return capital to shareholders, raise new debt
financing or sell assets to reduce debt.
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24 EBXR- BERRE @)

(e) WoEHE

R2009F 12 A31H 25t AT D LA AR K 2 HiE S5
75 #27,339,6437T (20084 : 7 #35,435,2367T) ° A
BEEABEXRGEERRE  EFERIRAMEERETABRS
kAl (20087 : KREFE B L BABEESIL) - AFHEE
15,767,3957C (20084 : K HI B &5 %19,693,2447T) °
REEABREEHEERBARAERLEE -

) EBEXEE

FEBZEREBREERANREBAEE  EELEY
B MEERERERBRRRHED®R R AEmERA LR
A EE - AE mER MERRKYEAZERRSRIASE
KALZERESR

AEBTHREHRRTEENEBUERS FERE R
R REEZE2RHEASEERRN - REKLERBR TEH
HERNGERERDEE 2 HIE -

R20094F » A& E v KA WNFI2008F — 1 - R EF
B EHE AR AR H] T B29% (20084 : 22%) © &
THESSFARLG  ANEEATREAEEIRS TRE 2K
BBk RERATRE  S£HMcEERES N
EEENRDESE -
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24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND
DIVIDENDS (continued)

(f) Capital management (continued)

The net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio at 31 December
2009 and 2008 was as follows:

A B M &E

24 EX-RFERRE (&)

) EBEXEEE)

20094 2 2008F 12 A31H 2 /F & E AL AR A H,
faT

The Group The Company
rEE NN

2009 2008 2009 2008

HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Current liabilities: mEEE :
Trade and other payables E 5 REMEMNRE 118,302,415 85,917,711 72,327,071 52,961,308
Add: Proposed dividends m:ERRERE 15,767,395 19,693,244 15,767,395 19,693,244
Net debt BEFE 134,069,810 105,610,955 88,094,466 72,654,552
Total equity bk 485,804,246 489,925,607 411,917,389 417,547,279
Less: Proposed dividends B EEIRERE (15,767,395) (19,693,244) (15,767,395) (19,693,244)
Adjusted capital RARER 470,036,851 470,232,363 396,149,994 397,854,035
Net debt-to-adjusted FEEEARKRALNLH

capital ratio 29% 22% 22% 18%

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

AR REHBARSTE R RBREREROTE °
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25 COMMITMENTS 25 RiE
(@)  Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December (a)  #2009F12A31H M EHERBIRBH KRN AR
2009 not provided for in the financial statements APENT
were as follows:
The Group The Company
TEE b NN
2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B JEME B JBHE
Contracted for: BEEA
— Construction work — BT 55,122 680,825 - -
— Purchase of equipment - BERERER
and moulds 1,157,699 113,350 - -
1,212,821 794,175 - -
Authorised but not BHLEBERFL
contracted for:
— Capital injection into a —XBEEMBAR
subsidiary 46,500,000 46,800,000 46,500,000 46,800,000
47,712,821 47,594,175 46,500,000 46,800,000

(b) At 31 December 2009, the total future minimum
lease payments under a non-cancellable operating
lease are payable as follows:

(b)  FA2009F12H31H ' ERTAI BB 2 &= E M
RARRZ 2 xEBEENT

The Group The Company
REE PN
2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Within 1 year 16K = = 240,000 300,000

Significant leasing arrangements in respect of land held
under operating leases are described in note 13(d).

Apart from this lease, the Company was the lessee in
respect of a property held under an operating lease. The
lease typically runs for an initial period of one year, with
an option to renew the lease at which time all terms were
renegotiated. The lease does not include any contingent
rentals.
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

AND FAIR VALUES

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and foreign
currency risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s
business. The Group’s exposure to risks and the financial
risk management policies and practices used by the
Group to manage these risks are described below.

(@) Credit risk and concentration risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to cash
and cash equivalents and trade debtors. The maximum

exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying
amount of each financial asset in the balance sheet.

Substantially all the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
are deposited in financial institutions in Hong Kong and
the PRC. The credit risk on liquid funds is limited as the
majority of counterparties are financial institutions with
high credit ratings assigned by international credit rating
agencies or stated-controlled financial institutions with
good reputations.

In respect of trade debtors, management has a credit
policy in place and the exposure to the credit risk
is monitored on an ongoing basis. Individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring
credit over a certain amount. These evaluations focus
on the customer’s past history of making payments when
due and current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customer as well as pertaining
to the economic environment in which the customer
operates. Trade debtors are due within 30 to 60 days
from the date of billing. Normally, the Group and the
Company does not obtain collateral from customers.
Consequently, management considers the aggregate
risks arising from the possibility of credit losses are
limited and to be acceptable.

A B M &E

26 €@TH

FE - B2ndl MERINERBRENRAEEN—KE
TERTESL - ELRER T RMBER S ANE BH 5
EEBRNMERIL T -

(a) FERBEETRR
AEENEERRIZRERESMREFERARESE
BA - RREERBZELZIINEERBRTERIE
BEREE -

AEEEBEREGRRNEEFEHE " REANGEERIZE
ARTESREE E2RPUEZEERBREAEREAX
ZHEFUHRERREEFERBIREERTZNG
g R B ZIT 2 RIFEENTSHE -

REZEHKAME  BEEEBMTNEEBSR  TeFE
EREAXHNEERR - HRBEERKBRE T EESHE
ZEBEERHETEEENG - WETHEEHEERB
B 2 BB MR MB AL Y EBERHNER
ERMBEEMENSERENER - BB EWGIARHE
HEREE B#530-60B WEIH - B — A 2 ERER &
g HEEHEESTERTEMNEMEE - A5E—K
TemEFPWEBETRR REASHHR  EEERAHRE
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES (continued)

(a) Credit risk and concentration risk
(continued)

The Group’s and the Company’s exposure to credit risk
is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics
of each customer. The default risk of the industry and
country in which customers operate also has an influence
on credit risk but to a lesser extent. At the balance
sheet date, the Group and the Company have a certain
concentration of credit risk as 23% (2008: 27%) and
24% (2008: 28%); and 71% (2008: 71%) and 75% (2008:
73%) of the trade debtors was due from the largest
customer and the five largest customers respectively.
Management does not expect any significant losses
from trade debtors that have not been provided for other
than the impairment loss on bad and doubtful debt as
set out in note 18.

(b) Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short term investment of cash surpluses. The Group’s
policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term.
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(a) FERRREETERR (B

AEBRARGBFAKRZEERR  FEXSEF ZER
BEMyE BPEEMEZTERBRZBERRIIE
ZEERR  HEERERL  cREER  AEBRAR
AIMNAKREFIHE S EHAFIE23% (20084F : 27%) &
24% (2008%F : 28%) i MN71% (20084 : 71%) K75%
(2008 : 73%) * MAX —TRENEEETERR - &
BETHEESERATEEANERBEMTREHEHRTE
MIsE18 2 ARV E 1 -
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES (continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (continued)

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group’s
and the Company’s financial liabilities which are based
on the contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments, computed using contractual rates or,
if floating, based on rates current at the balance sheet
date) and the earliest date the Group and the Company
can be required to pay:

A B M &E

26 ©®MIA @
(b) ETRBURE (F)

TRINEAEERARB ZFTEMSBREBENEERZ
HTANIRFS - ERENEGNLNRERAZRER
(BREREBAOEME M2 FHFRGENEER -
AIRZAE) RARBRARA KT HFREN L B Y

=
Ean

(i) The Group (i) KEE
2009 2008
Total Total
contractual as Within contractual as Within
discounted 6 months discounted 6 months
cash flow oron cash flow oron
Carrying  #iRAEH demand Carying  &:EEH demand
amount WREHR 6 AR amount MR EEA 618 A Mk
REE ZBEER  EREFH REE ZRER EXENE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000
BETT BETT BETT BETFT BT BT
Trade and other payables B REMENER 118,302 118,302 118,302 85,918 85,918 85,918
(i) The Company (i)  ARF]
2009 2008
Total Total
contractual as Within contractual as Within
discounted 6 months discounted 6 months
cash flow oron cash flow oron
Carrying  HEAN demand Carrying  BFIREH demand
amount WREHR T amount MR EEA 618 A Mk
REE ZBER ERETH REE ZHRER B3
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
BETT BETT BETT BT BT BT
Trade and other payables BHRAMERERE 72,327 72,327 72,327 52,961 52,961 52,961
Amounts due to subsidiaries  FEfTHIBAEIEH 25,253 25,253 25,253 28,002 28,002 28,002
97,580 97,580 97,580 80,963 80,963 80,963

In order to manage the liquidity demands above, at 31
December 2009, HK$175,402,884 (2008: HK$215,925,630)
and HK$124,933,994 (2008: HK$154,254,913) of the
Group’s and the Company’s assets respectively were held
as cash that is considered readily realisable.

ERFERE LM ESREFT K 120094128318 -
REEBRARGDANFEAIRSGHMER  REA/EE
175,402,884 T (20084 : /& 215,925,630 T) M /& #&
124,933,994 T (20084 : &% 154,254,9137T) ©
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES (continued)

(c) Interest rate risk

The Group’s and the Company’s interest rate risk arises
primarily from cash and cash equivalents which were
contracted at short-term variable rates and expose the
Group and the Company to cash flow interest rate risk.
The Group’s and the Company’s interest rate profile as
monitored by management is set out in (i) below.

(i) Interest rate risk

26 ©®MIA

(c) F=@Ep

REERARRIZAERBRFERERRESEEEABZL
ERAEHAERSIBAERRARRERE A FER
% o ANEE KA T 2 NN BB IR EE I (1)
T

(i) FEm=RE

The Group The Company
r5E KAH
2009 2008 2009 2008

Effective Effective Effective Effective

interest interest interest interest

rate rate rate rate

BERA= ERFIZ BRA= ERFI%
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$'000
% EBETT % EETT % EBETT % EETT
Variable rate bank deposits  SR{TEHEHZE 04 171,951 23 204,877 02 121,673 23 150,425

(i) Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2009, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, would increase/
decrease the Group’s and the Company’s profit after
tax and retained profits by approximately HK$1,641,000
(2008: decreasel/increase the loss after tax by
approximately HK$2,049,000) and HK$1,217,000 (2008:
decrease/increase the loss after tax by approximately
HK$1,504,000) respectively. Other components of equity
would not be affected (2008: HK$Nil) by changes in
interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred
at the balance sheet date and had been applied to the
exposure to interest rate risk for financial instruments
in existence at that date. The 100 basis point increase
or decrease represents management’s assessment of
a reasonably possible change in interest rates over the
period until the next annual balance sheet date. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2008.
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R2009F12A31BEMBEMBLAZERFTTENER
T fAEF— MR R RPN, 5 1002 F 0 15D Bl
/O REENRARAR 2 BHEEEB N ADEFBEL S
RII7E%1,641,0007T (20084F : AR EIR A B INEELD
152 049,0007T) B #1,217,0007T (20084 : B B 14
S 18 NN ES I8 4 75 151,504,0007T) o H A RE2E 2 A
REE LT E (20084F : BETT) ©

NENBREIMERRANEXEH O REE A HEME
A WERARMRZBMESRAITERFITERBT
B2 M=K - 1005 FE MBI EEEEEEE T —
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20084F 1H[F) 2 EAEHETT o




Notes to the financial statements

26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES (continued)

(d) Foreign currency risk

(i) Foreign currency transactions

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
sales and expense transactions that are denominated
in a currency other than the functional currency of the
operations to which they relate. The currencies giving
rise to this risk are primarily United States Dollars and
British Pounds.

(i) Recognised assets and liabilities

In respect of other trade receivables and payables held
in currencies other than the functional currency of the
operations to which they relate, the Group ensures
that the net exposure is kept to an acceptable level, by
buying or selling foreign currencies at spot rates where
necessary to address short-term imbalances.

A B M &E

26 ©®MIA @
(d) SRR

(i IELS

AEEEBHRNUAZEREEHNEEBUIN 2 EHIIE
ZWARMZ I mAAEINER K - BRRERR 2 E¥E

(i) EREZEEREE

ERNERZYEERNIINZEBRHRBE2EME SRR
ENFIE  AEEeEURRMEHN N FER - ARE
EXBEARBLINE  BERFIZESHFE BRI
BE -

(i) The following table details the Group’s and the (i) TRIIRANER KRARBNEE B FIET K sl i
Company’s exposure at the balance sheet date RUANREEB AN — B EE S ENEES AR
to currency risk arising from recognised assets or AHEHNEERE -
liabilities denominated in a currency other than
the functional currency of the entity to which they
relate.

The Group The Company
58 KAT
2009 2008 2009 2008

United United United United
States British States British States British States British
Dollars ~ Pounds Dollars Pounds Dollars  Pounds Dollars Pounds
E 3 e B ET 3 e 55
'000 000 '000 '000 000 '000 '000 ‘000
fr T# T T fr & T T
Trade and other receivables &5 R E i fEURERIE 14,276 359 8,267 112 14,276 359 8,267 112
Cash and cash equivalents B¢ REEEEEHR 15,420 18,550 556 15,420 4 18,550 556
Trade and other payables B REMERERR (3,644) (2,619) - (3,644) - (2,619) -
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUTT B2 T - - - 2,687 - 2,051 =
Amounts due to subsidiaries  FETHIB A AR - - - (67) - (405) -

Net exposure arising from HEREER

recognised assets and liabilities & EFTEUE(E 26,052 363 24,198 668 28,672 363 25,844 668
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 26 €®MTIA®E
AND FAIR VALUES (continued)

(d) Foreign currency risk (continued) (d) R (&)

(iv)  Sensitivity analysis (iv)  BEEESIT

The following table indicates the approximate change in T XRBEAREE K AN FREE HFTEAX B ARR 2 EXR
the Group’s and the Company’s profit/(loss) after tax and 2 &EAEEHEHRWEBERRE BFEKR 2 O E
retained earnings in response to reasonably possible & e

changes in the foreign exchange rates to which the

Group and the Company have significant exposure at

the balance sheet date.

The Group The Company
A48 27
2009 2008 2009 2008
Effect on Effect on Effect on Effect on

Increase/ profit after  Increase/  loss after Increase/ profit after  Increase/  loss after
(decrease)  taxand (decrease)  taxand (decrease) taxand (decrease)  tax and
in foreign  retained inforeign  retained inforeign  retained inforeign  retained
exchange profits  exchange profits ~ exchange profits  exchange profits
rate  HEBHEZ rate  HRHE rate  HERHEZ rate  HRH%
Exign,/ BARRE EXLN/ BERRE ER@h/ BARRE ExEn/ BERRE
(W) BRz¥E (Rd) BAzZE (HY) BRzEE (i) BMzEE

HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
BETT BB BEFT BETT
United States Dollars e 5% 8,430 5% 7,880 5% 9,278 5% 8,416

(5%  (8,430) (5%)  (7,880) (5%)  (9,278) (5%)  (8,416)

+
+
S

British Pounds 5% 172 5% 335 5% 172 5% 335

(5%) (172) (5%) (335) (5%) (172) (5%) (335)

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming &XE ST IREREXREEFNEEREE - WEARAR
that the change in foreign exchange rates occurred at FIREEREEGHNZBNFE ETES BT AREAT
the balance sheet date and applied to the Company and & @Efa - MG A EREE (LAEFXR) REFTE -
each of the Group entities’ exposure to currency risk for

non-derivative financial instruments in existence at that

date, and that all other variables, in particular interest

rates, remain constant.
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES (continued)

(d) Foreign currency risk (continued)
(iv)  Sensitivity analysis (continued)

The stated changes represent management’s assessment
of reasonably possible changes in foreign exchange
rates over the period until the next annual balance sheet
date. In this respect, it is assumed that the pegged rate
between the Hong Kong Dollar and the United States
Dollar would be materially unaffected by any changes in
movement in value of the United States Dollars against
other currencies. Results of the analysis as presented
in the above table represent an aggregation of the
effects on each of the Company and the Group entities’
loss after tax and equity measured in the respective
functional currencies, translated into Hong Kong Dollars
at the exchange rate ruling as at the balance sheet date
for presentation purposes. The analysis is performed on
the same basis for 2008.

(e) Fair values
All financial instruments are carried at amounts not
materially different from their fair value as at 31

December 2009 and 2008.

27 CONTINGENT ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES

At 31 December 2009 and 2008, the Group and the
Company had no contingent assets and or liabilities.

A B M &E

26 ©®MIA @

(d) sSERER (&)
(iv) SEEESIT (&)

FrEflzEeEEEBRATEENEET —EFELEHEA
IR Z AR REEE - Bl - BRBTAERTZHAE
FHAEGRXTHARMBER ZBHMIEATZE - LK
FORZ AT ERIEE KRB R AR ER 2HRBEENRE
PRIEEERIZEERZER (28RN E) LRRBITF
B2 Z #85T o 1T 2 A REE2008F Fr kiR 2 A
R e

(e) 2AFE
FrEem T A2 ABREZEEEN2009F &2008F 12 A31
BZAFEEEZEATH -

27 BREERERE

20094 N 2008F12 A31H » AEE K AR BEA KA
BENBE -
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28 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 28 BEHMFEZEARZRHEER
TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

(a) Key management personnel remuneration (a) FEEEEAEMSE

Remuneration for key management personnel of the SEFZEREASMEBREINARTNITESTAMTE
Group represents amounts paid to the Company’s 8#i#E o
executive directors as disclosed in note 8.

2009 2008

HK$ HK$

B BB

Short-term employee benefits HHEERET 6,663,861 6,489,400
Post-employment benefits ZIEAEF 298,000 270,000
Share-based payments VARR D B ERE S 1,355,580 2,080,132
8,317,441 8,839,532

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note BB IEE S TR AN E6(a) °
6(a)).

(b) Other related party transactions (b) HiEEHSER

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group  fE2009F12 431 H 1L - REBEBH T BATRS
entered into the following material related party
transactions:

The Group
REH
2009 2008
HK$ HK$
B JBEM
Rental income from a related RER@E S e
company (note 5) WA (H1:E5) 240,000 240,000
Secretarial fees paid to a related TSR R wE
company & 264,000 264,000
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28 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES
(continued)

(b) Other related party transactions (continued)

Rental income is received from and secretarial fees are
paid to a related company, in which Dr. Wong, Philip Kin
Hang, and Mr. Wong, Kennedy Ying Ho, have beneficial
interests. Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang is a director of the
Company and Mr. Wong, Kennedy Ying Ho is a close
family member of certain directors of the Company.

Balances with related parties are disclosed in the
balance sheet and in notes 14 and 15.

29 Post balance sheet events

After the balance sheet date, the directors proposed
a final dividend. Further details are disclosed in note
24(b).
30 COMPARATIVE FIGURES

As a result of the application of HKAS 1 (revised 2007),
Presentation of financial statements, and HFKRS 8,
Operating segments, certain comparative figures have
been adjusted to conform to current year’s presentation
and to provide comparative amounts in respect of items
disclosed for the first time in 2009. Further details of
these developments are disclosed in note 3.

31 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

The methods, estimates and judgements the directors
used in applying the Group’s accounting policies have a
significant impact on the Group’s financial position and
operating results. Some of the accounting policies require
the Group to apply estimates and judgements, on matters
that are inherently uncertain. The critical accounting
judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies
are described below.

(a) Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis or reducing balance basis over the
estimated useful lives. The Group reviews annually
the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any.
The depreciation expense for future periods is adjusted
if there are significant changes from the previous
estimation.

A B M &E

28 BBAZEAXRZ KR (8)

(b) EHitbBEBAIEE (&)

KERBEE T ZHERARZNEBRT cWEER - =%
FHIRBLARAEERARAB AR EE G - 5L 7

BELEARBAEENERREALERARARLEZT I KK

MBI 2 MO EEERBRZME14RI6FRKE -
RERKEHE

EEBRREERE  BEFERREIREE « FIERMH
i24(b) °

29

EEEBE

HRERRE B G ERIE15E (2007FKEFT) - MBHEK
ZEBRBEMBREEAELSN - 2ESH - HETHR
BFETRBEUANEANFEZREZS) - AR 2/R7£2009
FERWERR 2[R RHF - BRFERHEIME -

30

BEERARAKE 2T BRNITA - R RABE AL
BZHBRARLEXEEEATE - REGTTHRER
AEBEERMG RABETEEST L - RS HEE
AEAKEZ ST BERFNT ¢

(a) #E

Bl A A RS B AR R A E 0 A A5 1
B - EE RS AR RS AENTEHERN RBE
i WA AROFERS @ EEBEHHBRENEA
B(L B -
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31 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(b) Impairments

In considering the impairment loss that may be required
for certain property, plant and equipment, investments in
subsidiaries and interests in associates, the recoverable
amount of the asset needs to be determined. The
recoverable amount is the greater of the net selling price
and the value in use. It is difficult to estimate precisely
the selling price because quoted market prices for the
assets may not be readily available. In determining the
value in use, expected cash flows generated by the asset
are discounted to their present value, which requires
significant judgement relating to items such as level of
turnover and amount of operating costs. The Group uses
all readily available information in determining an amount
that is a reasonable approximation of the recoverable
amount, including estimates based on reasonable and
supportable assumptions and projections of items such
as turnover and operating costs.

Impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts are
assessed and provided based on the directors’ regular
review of the ageing analysis and an evaluation of
collectability. A considerable level of judgement is
exercised by the directors when assessing the credit
worthiness and past collection history of each individual
customer.

An increase or decrease in the above impairment loss
would affect the operating results in the year and in
future years.

(c) Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement
on the future tax treatment of certain transactions and
interpretation of tax rules. The Group carefully evaluates
the tax implications of transactions and tax provisions
are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of transactions
is reconsidered periodically to take into account all
changes in tax legislation.
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Notes to the financial statements

31 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(c) Income taxes (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses not
yet used and temporary deduction differences. Those
deferred tax assets can only be recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future profit will be available
against which the unused tax credit can be utilised,
consequently management’s judgement is required
to assess the probability of future taxable profits.
Management’'s assessment is constantly reviewed
and additional deferred tax assets are recognised if it
becomes probable that future taxable profits will allow
the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

(d) Inventory provision

The Group performs regular reviews of the carrying
amounts of inventories with reference to aged inventories
analyses, projections of expected future saleability of
goods and management experience and judgement.
Based on these reviews, write-down of inventories will
be made when the carrying amounts of inventories
fall below their estimated net realisable value. Due to
changes in customers’ performance, actual saleability of
goods may be different from estimates and profit or loss
could be affected by differences from estimates.

(e) Share-based payments

The estimate of the fair value of the share options granted
to employees and other eligible persons measured by
professional valuers based on the Black Scholes model
with modifications to reflect the impact of vesting periods
and exercise patterns on the option value. The accuracy
of the above estimates could affect the amount of share-
based payments transactions recognised in the income
statement.

A B M &E

31 EErAsTRHE (&)

(c) FrfE®t (&)

R TR IR A B Th sk oK B B G B HUR = R 2 B IR S 1R B
R e ARRFREN AR EEN ARG M5 A B EE#Hm
AEBMERREADHE T SR - EEBAMERKE
s A2 AT BENE o BRI Z R TV E AR o fHARRE
AR A M A Ao FRUEEE R IR B & - R S R BIMELHR

HEE °
(d) F=FE&E
Kﬁlﬂ TE MR RFERES T - EHARKEE

M%&M%ZTT%E@ ER AR Elff%ﬁ
BETREREGEEFREEFEMEFERE BAEFX
BN2E  BEREESELGTEZERLFTAETZE
i M 1A

(e) HUBRABEMER

&%EE&E@AéﬂAiZ%%%Zﬂiﬁﬁﬁﬂmg
EHEMZEHFEAGFE - WEHEITARRBREEER
) E%&HEETZ%; PR EHEEREE AT 2 A
B RERAB X HERARER LT -
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32 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF
AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, new
standards and interpretations which are not yet effective
for the year ended 31 December 2009 and which have
not been adopted in these financial statements.

Of these developments, the following relate to matters
that may be relevant to the Group’s operations and
financial statements:

32 HEZE2009F12A31HLFEEEMEXR
£ - HEARREZEERE

HEHEUERRTE 2H  BESTMASCEHZIA
1857~ FEAR7E  BEREZE2009F12A318 EFE
MAREM - BADAR SIS RMERERA o

FEELGEXH  UWTRASABASE ZKLE MM BR
&=

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

WUT BEB%

EVY A+
HEEX
HKAS 27 Consolidated and separate financial BESNENSE7H (FE7) GARERZ BHER 1 July 2009
(Revised) statements 2009F7A1H
HKFRS 3 Business combinations BEMBMEENEN (LB  EEeH 1 July 2009
(Revised) 2009%7A1H
Improvements to  Improvements to HKFRSs (including BEH BREERNE(2009) BERBUHREREN (R 1 July 2009 or
HKFRSs (2009)  amendments to HKFRS 8, HKAS 1, 7, BAN B REERF85 1 January 2010
18 and 36) (BaTAK) - BASFE 20097 A1H %

%17 18]36%) 201051718

HKAS 24 Related party disclosures AR e F245 (KT BEALZBE 1 January 2011
(Revised) 20111418

The directors have confirmed that the Group is in
the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments, new standards and new
interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far it has concluded that their adoption
is unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group’s
results or financial position.
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Five Years Financial Summary

EIFUBRE

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENTS mEBER
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000  HK$’000 HK$’000
EFr  E¥TFT BT BFT  BETT
Continuing operations REREER
Turnover EEHE 1,008,712 954,572 842,856 724,191 817,000
Profit/(loss) before taxation and PR R AR TR K
share of losses of jointly controlled hE & AR R
entities and associates AER(E18) 23,366 51,552 (1,217)  (30,619) 7,983
Share of losses of jointly PTG REHIEEEE
controlled entities (3,299) - - - -
Share of losses of associates AT B N B 1E (12,645) (1,137)  (52,868) = =
Profit/(loss) before taxation BREATRET(E18) 7,422 50,415  (54,085)  (30,619) 7,983
Income tax (expense)/credit Fr8%: ()5t A (2,056) (5,567) 8,591 10,329 (23)
Profit/(loss) from continuing SERICEEB L
operations wHlL (EE) 5,366 44,848 (45,494)  (20,290) 7,960
Discontinued operations DRIEREER
Profit from discontinued RIS
operations, net of tax 2B %ER 157,648 3,386 - - -
Profit/(loss) for the year AEERF(FR) 163,014 48,234 (45,494)  (20,290) 7,960
Attributable to: AEBER
Equity shareholders of ARAE
the Company 161,018 48,234  (45494)  (20,290) 7,960
Minority interests DY R 1,996 - - - -
163,014 48,234  (45,494)  (20,290) 7,960
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Five Years Financial Summary

EFHBRE

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET REBEEAEX
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BEFor  E¥FrT  EEFrT BT BETT
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB MR 195,110 188,888 179,173 171,228 173,552
Interests in leasehold land held for RECEHERESHR
own use under operating leases 2T iiEss 14,133 14,019 14,321 14,384 13,986
Interests in associates NI 53,222 52,868 - - -
Deferred tax assets EERIEEE 152 100 4,223 5,727 6,672
Net current assets MBI EEFE 147,733 475,055 399,466 300,997 291,759
Deferred tax liabilities ELERIEEE (8,865) (8,810) (3,313) (2,411) (165)
Net assets directly associated with EREDKIEEBES
discontinued operations ZEEE 480,274 - - - -
Net assets EEFE 881,759 722,120 593,870 489,925 485,804
Share capital (N 189,040 196,932 196,932 196,932 197,092
Reserves ] 692,719 525,188 396,938 292,993 288,712
Total equity attributable to RARIRREGEZ
equity shareholders of
the Company 881,759 722,120 593,870 489,925 485,804
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